
z
e

d
e

r
 in

v
e

s
t

m
e

n
t

s
 lim

it
e

d
   A

n
n

u
A

l r
e

p
o

r
t

 2
0

1
2

AnnuAl report 2012

WWW.ZeDer.Co.ZA



detAils oF zeder investments ltd
Registration number 2006/019240/06
Share code: ZED 
ISIN code: ZAE000088431

seCretArY And reGistered oFFiCe
PSG Corporate Services (Pty) Ltd
Registration number 1996/004840/07
Ou Kollege Building
35 Kerk Street
Stellenbosch, 7600
PO Box 7403
Stellenbosch, 7599
Telephone +27 21 887 9602
Telefax +27 21 887 9619

trAnsFer seCretAries
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd
Ground Floor
70 Marshall Street
Johannesburg, 2001
PO Box 61051
Marshalltown, 2107

CorporAte Advisor And sponsor
PSG Capital 

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc

prinCipAl BAnKer
FirstRand Ltd

WeBsite Address
www.zeder.co.za

AdministrAtion

 2012
Financial year-end 29 February
Profit announcement 10 April
Annual general meeting  22 June
Interim profit announcement 1 October

shAreholders’ diAry

GREYMATTER & FINCH # 6278

tAble of contents
Directors 1

Our investments 2

Letter to shareholders 4

Review of operations 7

Corporate governance 12

Annual financial statements 16

Administration and shareholders’ diary IBC



Leadership ... the abiLity to  
see what no-one eLse sees,  
to Listen when others taLk 
and the abiLity to be optimistic 
when others are pessimistic.

George W Cummings

directors

Johannes Fredericus mouton (65)
Chairman

BCom (Hons), CA(SA), AEP

directorships: Non-executive chairman  
of PSG Group Ltd, non-executive director of Steinhoff 
International Holdings Ltd and Pioneer Food Group Ltd.

antonie egbert Jacobs (47) *
Chief exeCutive offiCer

BAcc, BCompt (Hons), CA(SA), MCom (Tax), LLB

directorships: Executive chairman of  
Agricol Holdings Ltd **, Non-executive director  
of Capespan Group Ltd, MGK Business Investments Ltd 
and Pioneer Food Group Ltd. 

petrus Johannes mouton (35)
aCtinG Chief exeCutive offiCer **

BCom (Mathematics)

directorships: Chief executive officer of  
PSG Group Ltd and non-executive director 
of Capitec Bank Holdings Ltd.

George douglas eksteen (70)
non-exeCutive direCtor ^

directorships: Non-executive chairman of Kaap 
Agri Ltd and Agri Voedsel Beleggings Ltd, non-executive 
director of Swartland Investments Ltd.

wynand Louw Greeff (42)
finanCial direCtor

BCompt (Hons), CA(SA)

directorships: Financial director 
of PSG Group Ltd.

michiel scholtz du pré le roux (62)
non-exeCutive direCtor ^

BCom, LLB

directorships: Non-executive chairman  
of Capitec Bank Holdings Ltd.

chris adriaan otto (62)
non-exeCutive direCtor ^

BCom, LLB

directorships: Non-executive director of  
PSG Group Ltd, Capitec Bank Holdings Ltd,  
Capevin Holdings Ltd, Distell Group Ltd and  
Kaap Agri Ltd.

Lambert phillips retief (59)
non-exeCutive direCtor ^

BCom (Hons), CA(SA), OPM (HBS)

directorships: Non-executive chairman  
of Paarl Media Group (Pty) Ltd, non-executive director 
of Media24 Ltd, Naspers Ltd and Pioneer Food Group 
Ltd.

^ Independent

* Resigned with effect from 30 April 2012

** Effective 1 May 2012
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our investments

overberG aGri Ltd
www.overberg.co.za

10%

aGri voedseL beLeGGinGs Ltd
www.pioneerfoods.co.za 

44,7%

capespan Group Ltd
www.capespan.co.za

40,9%

kaap aGri Ltd
www.kaapagri.co.za

33,4%

capevin hoLdinGs Ltd
www.capevin.com

39,8%

aGricoL hoLdinGs Ltd
www.agricol.co.za

25,1%

suidwes investments Ltd
www.suidwes.co.za

23,7%

nwk Ltd
www.nwk.co.za

19,9% Zeder
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the estabLished 
businesses within Zeder’s 
investment portFoLio 
have promisinG asset 
vaLues, weLL-estabLished 
brands and Good 
manaGement in pLace.
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over the next year  
we wiLL continue 
seekinG and expLoitinG  
vaLue enhancinG 
opportunities  
within our core south 
aFrican market and 
existinG portFoLio, 
whiLe aLso evaLuatinG 
investments in the 
sub-saharan reGion.

letter to shareholders
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Zeder was listed on the JSE six years ago to house the food, agri and beverage interests 
of the PSG Group and to look for new opportunities in these sectors. The two main 
investment strategies at that stage were the “arbitrage opportunity” and the so-called 
“agri-evolution”.

•	 	The	arbitrage opportunity was that one could buy quality listed companies at a 
discount when investing in unlisted agricultural companies such as Kaap Agri (Pioneer) 
and KWV (Distell). We have made a concerted effort to unlock these discounts over 
the last number of years, and have been successful in doing so.

•	 	The	agri-evolution refers to the transition whereby the old agricultural co-operatives 
(co-ops) are converted to companies with a profit motive as its primary objective. 
Pioneer Foods is a good example of a successful agri-evolution. However, in many 
other co-ops we have found that it may still take a long time for them to become more 
shareholder orientated.

The recent transactions announced by Zeder indicate an additional strategy for the 
company. Zeder has historically only taken non-controlling strategic stakes in businesses 
in its chosen sector. The acquisition of controlling interests in both Agricol and Chayton 
will allow Zeder to play a more active role in determining strategy and to help expand the 
respective businesses. 

the acquisition oF 
more siGniFicant 
interests is an 
additionaL strateGy 
to the arbitraGe 
opportunity and 
aGri-evoLution.
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Africa

Africa has been called many things, but it is no longer viewed as the “dark continent”. 
Instead, it is nowadays seen as the “land of opportunity” with investment into Africa 
being topical around the world. With gloomy outlooks in many parts of the developed 
countries, investors and businesses are looking at developing markets, and specifically 
Africa, for growth. We have always said that there are enough investment opportunities 
in South Africa at much lower risk. However, we have realised that we cannot afford to 
miss out on the vast opportunities that Africa present. As South Africans, I believe we 
might be better positioned to compete in Africa than some of our counterparts elsewhere 
in the world. We are positive about the role that Africa, with its vast agricultural potential 
and resources, could play in addressing the growing global demand for food.

Subsequent to year-end, Zeder acquired an interest of 81% in Chayton, a large scale 
commercial farming operation in Zambia. This investment will further contribute to 
Zeder’s reach and will create new opportunities for its current South African-based 
investments.

Over the next year we will continue seeking and exploiting value enhancing opportunities 
within our core South African market and existing portfolio, while also evaluating 
investments in the sub-Saharan region. 

thanks

Effective 30 April 2012, Antonie Jacobs resigned as CEO and from the Zeder board to  
join Agricol on a full-time basis as executive chairman. We would like to thank Antonie for 
his contribution over the past six years and wish him well at Agricol. Piet Mouton will act 
as interim CEO until such time that a new CEO has been appointed.

A further word of thanks to:

•	 the	Zeder	board	members	and	management	team	for	their	efforts;

•	 	our	 investee	 companies,	 their	 boards,	 management	 and	 shareholders,	 for	 the	
constructive	manner	in	which	we	are	welcomed	into	your	worlds;	and

•	 to	our	valuable	shareholders	for	entrusting	us	with	your	capital.

Jannie mouton
Chairman

letter to shareholders (continued)
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revieW oF oPerations

Zeder‘s recurrinG 
headLine earninGs  
increased by 3,1% to  
27,9 cents per share  
and its sum-oF-the-parts  
vaLue by 15% to  
r3,15 per share.
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 revieW oF oPerations (continued)

Year ended FebruarY 2010 2011 2012

Headline earnings (Rm) 152,1 184,8 299,9

Headline earnings per share (cents) 17,3 18,9 30,7

Recurring headline earnings (Rm) 208,1 264,7 273,0

Recurring headline earnings per 
share (cents) 23,6 27,1 27,9

Dividend per share (cents) 4,0 4,0 4,0
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overvieW

Zeder is an investor in companies in the agriculture, food, and related sectors. The  
current value of its portfolio amounts to R3,1bn, of which Agri Voedsel Beleggings  
(with its interest of 31,1% in Pioneer Foods) and Capevin Holdings (with its effective 
interest of 14,8% in Distell) represent 62,4%.

During the year under review, Zeder invested R338m to increase its interest in existing 
investments trading at attractive values.

results

The two key benchmarks Zeder believes to measure performance by are recurring headline 
earnings per share and sum-of-the-parts (“SOTP”) value per share.

2010
Rm

2011
Rm

2012
rm

Recurring earnings 236,2 316,8 323,4

Food and agri 190,3 256,5 265,1

Beverages 45,9 60,3 58,3

Net interest and other income and expenses 16,5 1,1 (2,4)

Management fee and taxation (44,6) (53,2) (48,0)

recurring headline earnings 208,1 264,7 273,0

Non-recurring headline earnings

Investments marked to market and one-off items * (56,1) (79,9) 26,9

headline earnings 152,0 184,8 299,9

Non-headline items (28,4) 74,3 34,7

attributable earnings 123,6 259,1 334,6

recurring headline earnings per share (cents) 23,6 27,1 27,9

headline earnings per share (cents) 17,3 18,9 30,7

attributable earnings per share (cents) 14,0 26,5 34,2

dividend per share (cents) 4,0 4,0 4,0

* The one-off items mainly relate to the impact of Pioneer Foods’ Competition Commission settlement.

Zeder’s consolidated recurring headline earnings is the sum of its effective interest in that 
of each of its underlying investments. The result is that equity investments which Zeder 
does not equity account in terms of accounting standards, are included in the calculation 
of recurring headline earnings. This provides management and investors with a more 
realistic and simplistic way of evaluating Zeder’s earnings performance.
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Recurring headline earnings per share increased by 3,1% to 27,9 cents. Headline earnings 
per share increased by 62,3% to 30,7 cents, and attributable earnings per share by 29,1% 
to 34,2 cents. The significant increase in headline earnings mainly relates to the prior year 
impact of Pioneer Foods’ Competition Commission settlement. The lower increase in 
attributable earnings, when compared to headline earnings, reflects the prior year’s 
R65,6m non-headline profit on the disposal of Zeder’s interest in KWV.

During the year under review, Zeder’s SOTP value per share (calculated using quoted 
market prices) increased by 15% to R3,15. The SOTP value is analysed in the table below:

2010 2011 2012

Company
Interest

% 
Value 

Rm
Interest

% 
Value 

Rm
interest

% 
value 

rm

Agri Voedsel Beleggings 44,7 1 230,4

Kaap Agri * 41,3 812,8 43,9 1 270,4 33,4 205,5

Capevin Holdings 37,0 552,5 39,5 691,3 39,8 713,1

KWV Holdings ** 31,3 214,6

Capespan 14,6 54,5 22,7 84,7 40,9 293,0

Agricol 20,3 10,1 25,1 27,1 25,1 49,8

Suidwes 18,4 53,4 21,8 76,1 23,7 82,7

Other investments 267,7 348,8 541,3

total investments 1 965,6 2 498,4 3 115,8

Cash and cash equivalents 121,6 206,0 77,5

Other net liabilities (20,9) (28,6) (108,6)

sotp value 2 066,3 2 675,8 3 084,7

sotp value per share (rand) 2,11 2,74 3,15

number of shares in issue (m) 978,1 978,1 978,1

* Kaap Agri unbundled from Agri Voedsel Beleggings (December 2011)
**  KWV Holdings unbundled from Capevin Holdings (July 2009) and disposed of (February 2011)

agri voedsel beleggings (Pioneer Foods)

Kaap Agri’s operational assets were unbundled during December 2011. Following the 
unbundling, Zeder is invested in two separate entities – Agri Voedsel Beleggings (AVB) 
(with its 31,1% interest in Pioneer Foods) and Kaap Agri (housing Kaap Agri’s operational 
assets). The unbundling created approximately R219m in value for Kaap Agri shareholders.

AVB currently trades at a 10% to 15% discount to the see-through value of Pioneer Foods.

Pioneer Foods’ performance for its financial year ended September 2011 was adversely 
impacted by input cost pressures, delayed price increases and volume strain, which 
resulted in adjusted headline earnings declining by 18,5%.

Pioneer Foods’ results can be viewed at www.pioneerfoods.co.za.

revieW oF oPerations (continued)
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kaap agri

Kaap Agri’s own operations produced a steady set of results with its headline earnings 
increasing marginally to R78,4m for the year ended September 2011. Zeder’s interest in 
Kaap Agri’s own operations diluted as part of a BEE transaction which was concluded 
during the year under review.

Kaap Agri’s results can be viewed at www.kaapagri.co.za.

capevin holdings (distell)

Zeder owns a 39,8% interest in Capevin Holdings (CVH). CVH holds an indirect interest of 
14,8% in Distell and, although CVH shareholders receive virtually the same dividend as 
Distell shareholders, CVH trades at a 20% to 25% discount to the Distell see-through 
price. On 4 April 2012, CVH and Capevin Investments announced a merger by means of 
a scheme of arrangement. If successful, the discount at which CVH trades could reduce.

Distell recently reported interim results for the six months ended December 2011, reflecting 
a 23,7% increase in profit after tax. Distell’s cider and RTD (ready-to-drink) brands 
continued their strong performance locally and their wine portfolio showed a marginal 
increase in sales volumes. Results were also favourably impacted by a weaker rand, which 
largely contributed to the net operating margin improving to 14,6% (2010: 13,8%).

Distell’s results can be viewed at www.distell.co.za.

capespan

During the year under review, Zeder made an offer to acquire the entire issued share 
capital of Capespan. Through the offer and market purchases, Zeder managed to increase 
its shareholding to 40,9%.

Capespan delivered impressive results for its financial year ended December 2011, with 
headline earnings increasing by 24,4% to R64m.

Zeder remains optimistic about Capespan’s growth potential in both its fruit and logistical 
divisions.

Capespan’s results can be viewed at www.capespan.co.za.

other investments

During the past year, Zeder simplified its investment portfolio through the disposal of 
interests in MGK, OVK Bedryf and Tuinroete Agri for total cash proceeds of R97,3m.

Zeder invested a further R176,5m in its existing other investments. Although small when 
compared to the aforementioned companies, the rest of our investment portfolio 
continues to yield attractive returns.

Jannie mouton antonie Jacobs
Chairman Chief executive officer
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Corporate governanCe

Zeder is committed  
to the Four vaLues 
underpinninG Good 
corporate Governance: 
responsibiLity, 
accountabiLity, Fairness  
and transparency.
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Zeder is managed by PSG Group Ltd (PSG) in terms of a formal management agreement and 
adheres to PSG’s corporate governance policies. For more detail regarding these policies, refer to 
PSG’s annual report which is available at www.psggroup.co.za. 

Zeder is committed to the four values underpinning good corporate governance – responsibility, 
accountability, fairness and transparency – as also advocated in the King Code of Governance 
Principles (King III). Zeder’s corporate governance policies have been applied accordingly during 
the year under review. The group’s major subsidiaries and associated companies are similarly 
committed having, inter alia, their own audit and risk, and remuneration committees. 

Due to the size and nature of the company, the board does not consider application of all principles 
contained within King III appropriate. Where specific principles have not been applied, explanations 
for these are contained within this section of the annual report.

board of directors

There is a clear division of responsibilities at board level to ensure a balance of power and authority, 
such that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision-making. The Zeder board of 
directors remains autonomous, albeit that there is a formal management agreement in place 
between Zeder and PSG Corporate Services (Pty) Ltd (PSG Corporate Services). Details of Zeder’s 
directors are provided on page 1 of this annual report. The independence of the non-executive 
directors is considered on an ongoing basis by the board as a whole.

Although certain of the non-executive directors are not classified as independent in terms of 
King  lll, all of the non-executive directors are independent of thought and action. The board 
believes that all directors should own shares in the company. A director, as a shareholder, will thus 
share proportionally in the consequences of any good or bad decision. 

The board met four times during the past year as set out in the table below. Mr PJ Mouton was 
appointed to the board subsequent to year-end on 28 March 2012. Mr JF Mouton fills the role of 
non-executive chairman, Mr PJ Mouton that of interim chief executive officer (following the 
resignation of Mr AE Jacobs on 30 April 2012), and Mr WL Greeff that of financial director. 
Consideration will be given to the appointment of a lead independent director.

Zeder does not have a nomination committee, and director appointments are considered to be  
a matter for the board as a whole with all appointments being made in a formal and transparent 
manner.

Due to the nature and size of the business of the company, the experience of the directors and the 
knowledge that directors have regarding the particular business of the company, induction as well 
as ongoing training and development of directors are not driven through formal processes.

Zeder’s memorandum of incorporation requires one third of the non-executive directors of  
the company to retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-election by shareholders at the 
annual general meeting. In accordance with the company’s memorandum of incorporation, 
Messrs  GD  Eksteen, PJ Mouton and LP Retief retire by rotation and have offered themselves  
for re-election. Brief curricula vitae for these three directors are included on pages 55 to 56 of this 
annual report.
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Corporate governanCe (continued)

Board attendance 11 April 2011 25 July 2011  3 October 2011 10 February 2012

JF Mouton (chairman) √ √ √ √

GD Eksteen √ √ √ √

WL Greeff √ √ √ √

AE Jacobs √ √ √ √

MS du Pré le Roux √ √ √ √

CA Otto √ √ √ √

LP Retief √ √ √ √
√ – Present

The board’s key roles and responsibilities are:

•	 promoting	the	interests	of	stakeholders;

•	 formulation	and	approval	of	strategy;

•	 retaining	effective	control;	and

•	 	ultimate	accountability	and	responsibility	for	the	performance	and	affairs	of	the	company.

The	board	does	not	conduct	regular	appraisals	of	its	members	and	committees.	Consideration	will	
be	given	to	same	in	future.

The	 board	 has	 appointed	 an	 audit	 and	 risk	 committee	 consisting	 of	 three	 independent	 non-
executive	 directors,	 namely	Messrs	 LP	 Retief	 (chairman),	MS  du  Pré	 le	 Roux	 and	GD	 Eksteen.	
Messrs	Retief	and	Le	Roux	have	been	members	for	more	than	five	years	and	Mr	Eksteen	has	been	
a	member	for	the	past	two	and	a	half	years.	The	audit	and	risk	committee	met	on	11 April	2011	
and	3 October 2011.

Attendance 11 April 2011  3 October 2011

LP Retief (chairman) √ √

GD Eksteen √ √

MS du Pré le Roux √ √
√ – Present 

The	audit	and	risk	committee	has	formal	terms	of	reference	and	their	report	is	on	page	18	of	this	
annual	report.	

The	board	has	not	appointed	a	remuneration	committee	as	PSG	Corporate	Services	fulfils	this	role	
in	 terms	 of	 the	 formal	management	 agreement.	 The	 remuneration	 paid	 to	Messrs	AE	 Jacobs,	 
GD	Eksteen,	MS	du	Pré	le	Roux	and	LP	Retief	is	disclosed	in	the	directors’	report	on	page	21	of	 
this	 annual	 report.	 Messrs	 WL	 Greeff,	 JF	 Mouton	 and	 CA	 Otto	 received	 remuneration	 from	 
PSG	Corporate	Services	for	services	rendered	to	PSG	and	its	subsidiaries	in	general.

Executive committee

The	executive	committee	responsible	for	the	management	of	Zeder	comprises	Messrs	JF	Mouton	
(chairman),	WL	Greeff,	JA	Holtzhausen,	AE	Jacobs	(up	to	30	April	2012),	WJS	Meyer,	PJ	Mouton	
and	CA	Otto.	This	committee	meets	regularly,	at	least	twice	a	month,	and	is	primarily	responsible	
for	the	allocation	and	investing	of	the	company’s	resources,	including	capital.
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internal control and risk management

Internal control and risk management is overseen by the audit and risk committee whose report is 
included on page 18 of this report. 

Based on the functions performed by the audit and risk committee and PSG Corporate Services, 
in terms of the formal management agreement, the board is confident that the system of internal 
controls and current risk management processes are effective and aligned to the business needs 
and that it is not necessary to establish an internal audit function.

Based on the size and nature of the business, the audit and risk committee believes that certain 
governance mechanisms are not warranted. These include implementation of a combined 
assurance model, implementation of an IT governance framework and obtaining assurance on the 
effectiveness of the risk management process.

As IT does not play a significant role in the sustainability of Zeder’s business at a group level due 
to its nature and size, the investment and expenditure in IT at group level are insignificant. The 
board is accordingly satisfied that the current systems of IT governance at group level are 
appropriate.

integrated reporting and disclosure

Zeder is an investment holding company that rarely gets involved in the management of its 
underlying investments. Part of the philosophy of Zeder is to invest in companies with strong 
management. Zeder therefore relies on them to apply the principles of King III regarding 
sustainability reporting and disclosure, to the extent appropriate to their business.

Zeder will, going forward, apply the principles of integrated reporting at company level to the 
extent that such principles are considered appropriate.

social responsibility

Zeder also subscribes to the philosophy of black economic empowerment (BEE) and encourages 
its investments to undertake BEE initiatives. Zeder has participated and facilitated BEE transactions 
and has a strategic and trusted BEE partner, which it introduces to its investments.

Financial reporting and stakeholder communication

Zeder has identified its two major stakeholders as its shareholders and investment companies. 
Ongoing communication and engagement are therefore focused on these groups, as detailed 
below. Financial reports are provided to shareholders twice a year. Details regarding significant 
transactions undertaken are reported as required by the JSE Listings Requirements.

Communication with investment companies is done on an ongoing basis. The annual general 
meeting serves as platform for interactive communication with stakeholders. The company’s 
communication officer’s contact details are available on Zeder’s website should stakeholders wish 
to direct queries to the company.
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The audit and risk committee (“the committee”) reports that it has considered the matters set out in the Companies Act, 
71 of 2008, as amended, and is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. The committee has considered and recommended the fees payable to the external auditor 
and is satisfied with the extent of non-audit-related services performed.

This committee also acted as the statutory audit committee of those public company subsidiaries that are legally required 
to have such a committee.

The committee has satisfied itself that the financial function, including the financial director, has the appropriate expertise, 
experience and resources, and is satisfied that the internal financial controls of the company are working effectively.

A board-approved audit and risk committee charter stipulating, inter alia, the committee’s composition, duties and 
responsibilities, has been adopted. The committee is satisfied that it complied with the responsibilities as set out in the 
audit and risk committee charter as well as relevant legal and regulatory responsibilities.

Based on the information and explanations given by management and discussions with the independent external auditor 
regarding the results of their audit, the committee is satisfied that there was no material breakdown in the internal 
financial controls during the financial year under review.

The committee has evaluated the annual financial statements of Zeder Investments Ltd and the group for the year ended 
29 February 2012 and, based on the information provided to the committee, considers that the group complies, in all 
material respects, with the requirements of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended, and International Financial 
Reporting Standards.

lP Retief
Chairman

10 April 2012
Stellenbosch

RepoRt of the audit and Risk committee 
for the year ended 29 February 2012

The directors are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and to prepare annual financial 
statements that fairly represent the state of affairs and the results of the company and group. The external auditor is 
responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the fair presentation of these annual financial statements. 
Management fulfils this responsibility primarily by establishing and maintaining accounting systems and practices 
adequately supported by internal accounting controls. Such controls provide assurance that the company and group’s 
assets are safeguarded, that transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorisations and that the 
financial records are reliable. The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS“), including the AC 500 standards, the manner required by the Companies Act of 
South Africa and the JSE Listings Requirements, and incorporate full and responsible disclosure. Appropriate and 
recognised accounting policies are consistently applied.

The audit and risk committee of the group meets regularly with the external auditor, as well as senior management, to 
evaluate matters concerning accounting policies, internal control, auditing and financial reporting. The external auditor 
has unrestricted access to all records, assets and personnel as well as to the audit and risk committee.

The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, since the directors have every reason to believe that 
the group has adequate resources to continue for the foreseeable future.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 20 to 54 were approved by the board of directors of Zeder Investments 
Ltd and are signed on its behalf by:

JF mouton     Ae Jacobs
Chairman     Chief executive officer

10 April 2012
Stellenbosch

appRoval of the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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We have audited the group annual financial statements and annual financial statements of Zeder Investments Ltd, which 
comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 29 February 2012, and the consolidated 
and separate income statement and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, and the directors’ report, 
as set out on pages 20 to 54.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Act of South 
Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes the evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all materials respects, the consolidated and separate financial 
position of Zeder Investments Ltd as at 29 February 2012, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and 
its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa.

Pricewaterhousecoopers inc
Director: NH Döman
Registered Auditor

10 April 2012
Stellenbosch

independent auditoR’s RepoRt 
to the members of Zeder Investments Ltd

We declare that, to the best of our knowledge, the company has lodged with the Registrar all such returns as are required 
of a public company in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

PsG corporate services (Pty) ltd
Per Wl Greeff
Company secretary

10 April 2012
Stellenbosch

declaRation by the company secRetaRy 
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oveRvieW
Zeder Investments Ltd is an investor with a portfolio comprising agriculture, food and related investments.

During the year under review, Zeder invested R338m to increase its interest in already existing investments trading at 
attractive values, and disposed of its interests in MGK Business Investments Ltd, OVK Bedryf Ltd and Tuinroete Agri Ltd 
for total proceeds of R97,3m.

Results
Recurring headline earnings and recurring headline earnings per share for the year increased by 3,1% to R273m and  
27,9 cents respectively. Headline earnings per share increased by 62,3% to 30,7 cents, and attributable earnings per 
share increased by 29,1% to 34,2 cents. The significant increase in headline earnings mainly relates to the prior year 
impact from Pioneer Foods’ Competition Commission penalties, which had an adverse impact on share of profits of 
associated companies. Attributable earnings’ lower increase, compared to headline earnings, reflects the prior year’s 
R65,6m non-headline profit made on the disposal of KWV.

Effective 1 September 2010 the group undertook an internal restructuring, whereby the company disposed of its entire 
long-term investment portfolio and other assets and liabilities to Zeder Financial Services Ltd. Zeder Financial Services Ltd 
is a wholly owned subsidiary of the company, accordingly the group retained control over all assets and liabilities. As such, 
the company’s earnings and cash flow information are not entirely comparable.

shaRe capital
During the year under review the number of shares in issue remained unchanged at 978 088 517. Details regarding the 
authorised and issued share capital are disclosed in note 6 to the annual financial statements.

dividends
During the year, a final dividend of 4 cents per share (2011: 4 cents) was declared and paid in respect of the year ended 
28 February 2011.

events subseQuent to the RepoRtinG date
Subsequent to the reporting date:
•	 the	group	acquired	two	businesses	as	set	out	in	note	24;
•	 changes	to	the	effective	capital	gains	tax	rate,	increasing	it	from	14%	to	18,6%,	became	effective;	and
•	 the	company	declared	and	paid	a	final	dividend	of	4	cents	per	share	in	respect	of	the	year	ended	29	February	2012.

The directors are unaware of any other matter or event which is material to the financial affairs of the group that have 
occurred between the reporting date and the date of approval of these annual financial statements.

diRectoRs
No changes occurred to the board of directors during the year under review. The directors of the company at the date of 
this report were:

executive non-executive

ae Jacobs Jf mouton (chairman)

wl greeff gd eksteen *

ms du pré le Roux *

ca otto *

lp Retief *

pJ mouton **
* independent
** appointed 28 march 2012

diRectoRs’ RepoRt 
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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diRectoRs (continued)
Directors’ emoluments are paid by PSG Group in terms of the management agreement (refer note 13 to the annual 
financial statements). Directors’ emoluments include the following cash-based remuneration:

basic company performance- total total

salary contributions related* fees 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

executive

ae Jacobs **  1 382  18  350  1 750  1 496 

wl greeff ***

non-executive

Jf mouton ***

ca otto ***

gd eksteen  95  95  83 

ms du pré le Roux  95  95  95 

lp Retief  100  100  100 

 1 382  18  350  290  2 040 1 774

* paid in respect of prior year performance.
** mr ae Jacobs was the holder of 245 683 psg group share options at 29 february 2012, issued in separate tranches at an average strike price of R19,58 per 

share. each tranche of the options vests over a period of five years, and the related costs are carried by psg group in terms of the management agreement.
*** these directors receive directors’ emoluments from psg group for services rendered to psg group and its investee companies. in addition to these directors the 

company’s prescribed officers include messrs pJ mouton and Ja holtzhausen, the members of psg group’s executive committee, which manages the group  
(as set out in note 13) and whose remuneration is disclosed in psg group’s annual report. no directors remuneration was paid by the company or its subsidiaries 
to any of these directors. 

shaReholdinG of diRectoRs

Beneficial non-beneficial total shareholding

29 February 2012 Direct indirect Direct indirect number %

ae Jacobs  130 000  130 000  0,013 

wl greeff  80 000  80 000  0,008 

Jf mouton  80 000  80 000  0,008 

ms du pré le Roux  250 000  250 000  0,026 

ca otto  80 000  80 000  0,008 

 80 000  130 000  –  410 000  620 000  0,063 

The shareholding of directors remained unchanged for the year under review. Also refer to the shareholder analysis in 
note 22 to the annual financial statements.

secRetaRy
The secretary of the company is PSG Corporate Services (Pty) Ltd. Please refer to the administration section for its business 
and postal addresses.

auditoR
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc will continue in office in accordance with the Companies Act of South Africa, 71 of 2008.

diRectoRs’ RepoRt (continued) 
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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statements of financial position
as at 29 February 2012

GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets

non-current assets  2 850 743  2 350 290  2 117 521  2 117 521 

investment in subsidiary 1  2 117 521  2 117 521 

investment in associated companies 2  2 633 205  2 143 608 

equity securities 3  217 538  206 682 

current assets  131 984  207 611  –  –

trade and other receivables 4  54 501  1 602 

current income tax receivable  5  9 

cash and cash equivalents 5  77 478  206 000 

total assets  2 982 727  2 557 901  2 117 521  2 117 521 

eQuitY AnD liABilities

capital and reserves

share capital 6  9 781  9 781  9 781  9 781 

share premium  1 730 071  1 730 071  1 730 071  1 730 071 

other reserves  9 856  10 100 

Retained earnings  1 067 318  771 830  312 835  351 959 

 2 817 026  2 521 782  2 052 687  2 091 811 

non-current liabilities  132 636  5 899  –  –

deferred income tax 7  2 636  5 899 

borrowings 8  130 000 

current liabilities  33 065  30 220  64 834  25 710 

borrowings 8  703  64 801  25 677 

trade and other payables 9  32 362  30 220  33  33 

total equity and liabilities  2 982 727  2 557 901  2 117 521  2 117 521 



 Zeder AnnuAl report 2012 23

GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

income

investment income 10  63 722  22 794  31 918 

net fair value gains 11  51 237  32 032  251 147 

other operating income 12  577  782  350 

total income  115 536  55 608  –  283 415 

expenses 

management fee 13.1  (47 953)  (53 178)  (26 222)

other 13.2  (3 188)  (233)  (13)

total expenses  (51 141)  (53 411)  –  (26 235)

share of profits of associated companies 2  285 756  201 200 

loss on dilution of interest in associated company 2 (7 856)

loss on impairment of associated company 2 (1 444)

(loss)/gain on disposal of investment in  
associated company

2
 (125)  81 342 

Results of operating activities  342 170  283 295  –  257 180 

finance costs 14  (7 185)  (2 346)  (198)

Profit before taxation  334 985  280 949  –  256 982 

taxation 15  (373)  (21 829)  2 091 

Profit for the year  334 612  259 120  –  259 073 

Attributable to equity holders  
of the company  334 612  259 120 –  259 073 

earnings per share (cents) 20

attributable – basic and diluted  34,2  26,5 

headline – basic and diluted  30,7  18,9 

income statements
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Profit for the year  334 612  259 120  –  259 073 

Other comprehensive (loss)/income,  
net of taxation  (244)  19 792  –  –

share of other comprehensive income  
of associated companies  55 320  8 409 

other equity movements of associated companies  (15 192)  1 284 

disposal of investment in associated company   10 099 

Reversal of other comprehensive income  
of associated company   (40 372)

total comprehensive income for the year  334 368  278 912  –  259 073 

Attributable to equity holders of the company  334 368  278 912  –  259 073 

statements of compRehensive income 
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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share share Other Retained 

capital premium reserves earnings total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

GROuP

Balance at 1 march 2010 9 781  1 730 089 (9 692) 551 834 2 282 012

Profit for the year 259 120 259 120

Other comprehensive income – –  19 792 –  19 792 

share of other comprehensive income of  
associated companies  8 409  8 409 

other equity movements of associated companies  1 284  1 284 

disposal of investment in associated company  10 099  10 099 

total comprehensive income – –  19 792  259 120  278 912 

transactions with owners –  (18) –  (39 124)  (39 142)

share issue costs  (18)  (18)

dividend paid  (39 124)  (39 124)

Balance at 28 February 2011  9 781  1 730 071  10 100  771 830  2 521 782 

Profit for the year  334 612  334 612 

Other comprehensive income  –  –  (244)  –  (244)

share of other comprehensive income of  
associated companies  55 320  55 320 

other equity movements of associated companies  (15 192)  (15 192)

Reversal of other comprehensive income  
of associated company  (40 372)  (40 372)

total comprehensive income  –  –  (244)  334 612  334 368 

transactions with owners

dividend paid  (39 124)  (39 124)

Balance at 29 February 2012  9 781  1 730 071  9 856  1 067 318  2 817 026 

statements of chanGes in eQuity
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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share share Retained 

capital premium earnings total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

cOmPAnY

Balance at 1 march 2010 9 781  1 730 089  132 010  1 871 880 

Profit for the year  259 073  259 073 

transactions with owners –  (18)  (39 124)  (39 142)
share issue costs  (18)  (18)
dividend paid  (39 124)  (39 124)

Balance at 28 February 2011  9 781  1 730 071  351 959  2 091 811 

transactions with owners
dividend paid  (39 124)  (39 124)

Balance at 29 February 2012  9 781  1 730 071  312 835  2 052 687 

Final dividends per share

2010: 4 cents (declared and paid during april/may 2010)
2011: 4 cents (declared and paid during april/may 2011)
2012: 4 cents (declared on 7 march 2012 and paid on 2 april 2012)

statements of chanGes in eQuity (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

notes  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

cash flow from operating activities  21 348  27 048  –  12 145 

cash utilised by operations 19.1  (103 917)  (45 830)  (19 020)

interest received  4 198  2 682  1 881 

dividends received  128 586  89 213  28 673 

interest paid  (3 887)  (1 607)  (9)

taxation (paid)/refunded 19.2  (3 632)  (17 410)  620 

cash flow from investment activities  (240 746)  96 487  –  (94 610)

acquisition of associated companies 2  (264 476)  (183 588)  (78 928)

acquisition of equity securities 3  (73 536)  (28 189)  (13 268)

loan payable settled   (31)  (657)

proceeds from disposal of associated company  44 469  257 108 

proceeds from disposal of equity securities  52 797  38 835 

capital redemption of preference share investment  12 352

cash and cash equivalents transferred upon 
intergroup disposal (refer note 1)  (1 757)

cash flow from financing activities  90 876  (39 142)  –  (39 142)

dividend paid  (39 124)  (39 124)  (39 124)  (39 124)

share issue costs paid   (18)  (18)

increase in borrowings  130 000  39 124  

net (decrease)/increase in cash  
and cash equivalents  (128 522)  84 393  –  (121 607)

cash and cash equivalents at beginning 
of year  206 000  121 607  –  121 607 

cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5  77 478  206 000  –  –

statements of cash floWs
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

basis of pRepaRation
The consolidated and standalone financial statements of Zeder Investments Ltd have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), including the AC 500 standards, the manner required by the 
Companies Act of South Africa and the JSE Listings Requirements. The financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. 
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. The 
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to 
the financial statements are disclosed further in the accounting policies below.

standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are effective for the first time in 2012 and relevant 
to the company and group’s operations
No new standards, interpretations and amendments were relevant to the company’s operations.

standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are effective for the first time in 2012 and not 
currently relevant to the company and group’s operations
•	 Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2011)

•	 Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (effective 1 July 2010)

•	 Amendments to IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (effective 1 January 2011)

•	 Amendments to IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective 1 July 2010)

•	 Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates (effective 1 July 2010)

•	 Amendments to IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures (effective 1 July 2010)

•	 Amendments to IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting (effective 1 January 2011)

•	 Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (effective 1 July 2010)

•	 Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations (effective 1 January 2011)

•	 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective 1 January 2011)

•	 Amendments to IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective 1 January 2011)

•	 Amendments to IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (effective 1 January 2011)

•	 IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments (effective 1 April 2010)

•	 Improvements to IFRS 2010 (effective 1 January 2011)

These standards, interpretations and amendments have no impact on recognition, measurement or disclosure in the 
current or prior years.

standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective but relevant to the company 
and group’s operations
•	 Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (effective 1 July 2012)

New requirements to group together items within other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to the 
profit or loss section of the income statement in order to facilitate the assessment of their impact on the overall 
performance of an entity.

•	 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2013)
This standard improves and simplifies the approach for classification and measurement of financial assets compared 
with the requirements of IAS 39. IFRS 9 applies a consistent approach to classifying financial assets and replaces the 
numerous categories of financial assets in IAS 39, each of which had its own classification criteria. IFRS 9 also results 
in one impairment method, replacing the numerous impairment methods in IAS 39 that arise from the different 
classification categories. This standard is not relevant to the company.

accountinG policies
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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•	 IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2013)
New standard that replaces the consolidation requirements in SIC 12 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities and 
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. Standard builds on existing principles by identifying the 
concept of control as the determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated 
financial statements of the parent company and provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of 
control where this is difficult to assess.

•	 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (effective 1 January 2013)
New and comprehensive standard on disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities, including 
joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles.

•	 IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective 1 January 2013)
This	standard	explains	how	to	measure	fair	value	and	aims	to	enhance	fair	value	disclosures;	it	does	not	prescribe	
when to measure fair value, nor does it require additional fair value measurements.

standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective nor relevant to the 
company and group’s operations
•	 Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes (effective 1 January 2012)

•	 Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits (effective 1 January 2013)

•	 Amendments to IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2013)

•	 Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates (effective 1 January 2013)

•	 Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (effective 1 January 2011 
and 1 July 2011)

•	 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective 1 July 2011)

•	 IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective 1 January 2013)

•	 IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine (effective 1 January 2013)

GRoup financial statements
The group annual financial statements comprise those of the company, its subsidiaries and associated companies.

subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the group has the power to govern the financial 
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence 
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether 
the group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the 
group and are no longer consolidated from the date on which control ceases.

The group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred 
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests 
issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a 
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the 
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

In the standalone financial statements of the company, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less 
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost 
also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

accountinG policies (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable 
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in 
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by  
the group.

transactions and non-controlling interests
The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the group. For 
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired 
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling 
interests are also recorded in equity.

When the group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair 
value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the 
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, 
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the 
group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Associated companies
Associated companies are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control, generally 
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associated companies are 
accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The group’s investment in 
associated companies includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition (refer note 2).

Where equity securities are transferred to investment in associated companies upon gaining significant influence (“step 
acquisition”), the investment is transferred at its fair value. Goodwill is calculated at each stage of step acquisitions.

Certain associated companies have year-ends that differ from that of the group. The results of associated companies are 
accounted for according to the equity method, based on their most recent published financial statements or latest 
management information. Equity accounting involves recognising the group’s share of its associated companies’ post-
acquisition profits or losses in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive 
income and equity, in the statement of comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted 
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the group’s share of losses in an associated company equals or 
exceeds its interest in the associated company, including any other unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise 
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associated company.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associated companies are eliminated to the extent of the 
group’s interest in the associated companies. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Cross-holdings between the group and its associates are eliminated 
in accordance with normal consolidation procedure. Associates’ accounting policies have been changed where necessary 
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Dilution gains and losses arising on the investment in associated companies are recognised in the income statement.

After applying the equity method, investments in associated companies are tested for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for 
the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

accountinG policies (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the 
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Investments in associated companies’ preference shares are disclosed as part of the carrying value of the investment.

The company accounts for investment in associated companies at cost less provision for impairment.

seGment RepoRtinG
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance 
of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive committee that makes strategic decisions.

financial instRuments
Financial instruments recognised on the statement of financial position includes preference share investments, equity 
securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and borrowings. The particular 
recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

offsettinG financial instRuments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only when 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or 
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

financial assets
The group classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
(designated items) and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets 
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
This category has two subcategories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit 
or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the 
short term or if so designated by management. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception 
are those that are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. Information about these financial 
assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to the group’s key management personnel.

loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market other than those that the group intends to sell in the short term. Loans and receivables are carried at 
amortised cost using the effective-interest method. Specific provisions are made against identified doubtful advances.

Recognition and measurement of financial assets
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date – the date on which the group commits to purchase 
or sell the asset. Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss, are initially recognised at fair value plus 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are 
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and 
the group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Realised and unrealised gains and 
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets are included in the income statement in the period in 
which they arise.

Dividends on “at fair value through profit or loss” equity instruments are recognised in the income statement as part of 
investment income when the group’s right to receive payment is established.

accountinG policies (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active, 
the group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, 
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, and discounted cash flow analysis refined to reflect the 
issuer’s specific circumstances.

The group does not apply hedge accounting.

impairment of financial assets
Loans and receivables are considered impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of 
events that occurred after initial asset recognition (known as “loss events”) and these loss events have an adverse impact 
on the assets’ estimated future cash flows that can be reliably measured. Objective evidence that loans and receivables 
may be impaired, includes breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments. In this 
regard instalments past due date are considered in breach of contract. The amount of the impairment loss is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement, and reversed through the income 
statement.

impaiRment of investment in associated companies
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the associated company’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The carrying value 
of investment in associated companies is reviewed annually and written down for impairment where necessary.

Receivables
Receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently recognised at amortised cost using the effective-interest 
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the 
group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable. Significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or 
delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 
original effective interest rate. The movement in the amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

cash and cash eQuivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with 
maturities of three months or less.

shaRe capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown 
in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of taxation.

Non-redeemable preference shares, where the dividend declaration is subject to discretion of the board, is classified  
as equity.

financial liabilities
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity.

Financial liabilities include borrowings and trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the raising of 
the funds, for all financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. The best evidence of the fair value at initial recognition is 
the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced 
by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation 
technique whose variables include only data from observable markets.

Borrowings and trade and other payables
Payables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Payables are subsequently stated at 
amortised	cost;	any	difference	between	the	proceeds	(net	of	transaction	costs)	and	the	redemption	value	is	recognised	in	
profit and loss over the period of the payables using the effective-interest method.

accountinG policies (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012
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taXes
current and deferred income taxes
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit and loss, except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date in the countries where the company operates and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation 
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises 
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination, that at the time of the 
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined 
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to 
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associated companies, 
except where the company controls the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the 
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the 
balances on a net basis.

secondary tax on companies
South African resident companies are subject to a dual corporate tax system, one part of the tax being levied on taxable 
income and the other, a secondary tax (“STC”), on distributed income. A company incurs STC charges on the declaration 
or deemed declaration of dividends (as defined under South African tax law) to its shareholders. STC is not a withholding 
tax on shareholders, but a tax on companies.

The STC tax consequence of dividends is recognised as a taxation charge in profit and loss in the same period that the 
related dividend is accrued as a liability. The STC liability is reduced by dividends received during the dividend cycle. Where 
dividends declared exceed the dividends received during a cycle, STC is payable at the current STC rate on the net 
amount. Where dividends received exceed dividends declared within a cycle, there is no liability to pay STC. The potential 
tax benefit related to excess dividends is carried forward to the next dividend cycle as an STC credit. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised on unutilised STC credits to the extent that it is probable that the company will declare dividends in 
the following year to utilise such STC credits.

Revenue RecoGnition
Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Dividend income from financial assets 
that are classified as at fair value through profit or loss is included in investment income.

interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective-interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the company reduces 
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective 
interest rate of the instrument and continues unwinding discount as interest income. Interest income is included in 
investment income.

accountinG policies (continued)
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dividend distRibutions
Dividend distributions to the company’s shareholder are recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are 
approved by the company’s board of directors.

continGencies
A contingent liability is either a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
company or a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with 
sufficient reliability. These contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position but rather 
disclosed in note 17.

cRitical accountinG estimates and JudGements in applyinG accountinG policies
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under circumstances.

Directors’ valuation of unlisted associated companies
Directors valuation of unlisted associated companies are determined with reference to market prices, assessing the fair 
value of underlying investments as well as the published net asset value or valuation techniques. Valuation techniques 
used include applying a market-related price/earnings ratio, ranging between 4 and 8 (2011: 4 and 8), to operational 
earnings.

Fair value of unlisted financial instruments
The fair value of unquoted equity securities is determined with reference to over-the-counter (OTC) market prices.

impairment of investment in associated companies
An impairment of investment in associated companies is considered when the fair value is below its carrying value.  
In determination of whether the decline is significant or prolonged, the following factors may be considered: normal 
volatility in share price, the financial health of the investee, sector performance, changes in operational and financing 
cash flow.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the investment in associated company’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 
in use. The value in use is calculated with reference to the assumptions noted above.

The directors are satisfied that the group’s investment in associated companies are fairly stated.

Acquisition of associated companies
Details regarding significant new and further investments in associated companies are disclosed in note 2. In accounting 
for these transactions management had to apply judgement in allocating the purchase price to the identifiable assets and 
liabilities of the associated companies acquired, or the portion acquired when an additional interest was acquired.

accountinG policies (continued)
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cOmPAnY

2012 2011

R’000 R’000

1. investment in subsidiaRy

unlisted shares at cost less provision for impairment 2 117 521 2 117 521

effective 1 september 2010 the group undertook an internal restructuring, whereby the company disposed of its entire long-term 
investment portfolio and other assets and liabilities to Zeder financial services ltd. Zeder financial services ltd is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the company, and accordingly the group retained control over all assets and liabilities. the disposal was effected through 
an asset-for-share exchange. the asset-for-share exchange gave rise to an investment in Zeder financial services ltd to the value of 
R2 117 521 000. Refer to the annexure for more details regarding investments in subsidiaries.

GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2. investment in associated companies

carrying value of ordinary share investments

unlisted but quoted  2 567 104  2 081 949 

carrying value of preference share investments

thembeka ovb holdings (pty) ltd  66 101  61 659 

  2 633 205  2 143 608 – –

Reconciliation of ordinary share investments:

carrying value at beginning of year  2 081 949  1 892 476  1 482 344 

acquisitions

cash 264 476  183 588 78 928 

equity accounting

share of profits of associated companies *  245 384  201 200 

loss on dilution of interest in associated company  (7 856)

dividends received  (73 503)  (67 791)

other comprehensive income  40 128  9 693 

impairment loss  (1 444)

transfer from equity securities at fair value 61 120 56 060

disposal of investment in associated company  (44 594)  (191 833)

intergroup disposal of investment in associated companies  
(refer note 1) (1 561 272)

carrying value at end of year  2 567 104  2 081 949  –  –

market value of unlisted investments (based on  
published over-the-counter prices)  2 863 199  2 229 485 

*  share of profits of associated companies comprise R285 756 000, as per the income statement, together with a reversal of other comprehensive income 
of an associated company of R40 372 000 as per the statement of comprehensive income.

Refer to the critical accounting estimates and judgements, included as part of the accounting policies, for details supporting the testing 
for impairment.

notes to the annual financial statements 
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notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012

2. investment in associated companies (continued)

2012 acquisitions and disposals
acquisitions made in cash during the year mainly relates to increasing the group’s already existing interest (fair value of R61,1m) in 
nwk ltd by investing a further R117,6m. this caused the group to obtain significant influence over nwk ltd. furthermore, the group 
also invested an additional R114,1m in capespan group ltd. the group disposed of its interest, with a carrying value of R44,6m,  
in mgk business investments ltd. this gave rise to a loss of R0,1m.

2011 acquisitions and disposals
acquisitions during the prior year mainly related to increasing the group’s interest in already existing associated companies; capespan 
group ltd, capevin holdings ltd, kaap agri ltd and kwv holdings ltd. during february 2011, the group disposed of its entire 
shareholding in kwv holdings ltd at a profit of R81,3m.

Further information
the preference shares issued by thembeka ovb holdings (pty) ltd carry a dividend rate equal to prime. capital and accrued dividends 
are redeemable on 3 march 2016.

more details regarding investments in associated companies are disclosed in the annexure to the annual financial statements.

the group’s loss/gain on disposal of its investment in an associated company has been included in the income statement as part of 
operating activities, and the comparative figure has been reclassified to ensure consistency.

GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

3. eQuity secuRities
listed  43 378 

unlisted but quoted  3  96 884 

unquoted  174 157  109 798 

 217 538  206 682 – –

Reconciliation of equity securities at fair value through  
profit or loss:

carrying value at beginning of year  206 682  215 187  215 187 

acquisitions

cash  73 536  28 189  13 268 

Retained interest transferred from investment in 
associated company at fair value  26 168

transfer to investment in associated companies at fair value  (61 120)  (56 060)

disposals  (42 993)  (34 368)

unrealised net fair value gains  41 433  27 566 

intergroup disposal of equity securities (refer note 1)  (228 455)

carrying value at end of year  217 538  206 682  –  –
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3. eQuity secuRities (continued)

the investment in equity securities forms part of a strategic investment portfolio and the group’s stated long-term investment strategy.

the unquoted equity securities relate to advances which are linked to equity instruments. in terms of these agreements, the group is 
entitled to the majority of the increase in the market value of the underlying equity securities and the dividends received on these 
securities. the advances are impaired to the value of the underlying instruments should the market value of the instruments fall below 
the current carrying value of the advances.

GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

4. tRade and otheR Receivables

unamortised structuring fee   1 484 

value added tax  3 670

sundry receivables  50 831  118 

54 501  1 602 – –

during the prior year, a structuring fee was paid to firstRand bank ltd (acting through its Rand merchant bank division) in the process 
of obtaining a R250m funding facility. during the year, the facility was increased to R495m (extending to 30 september 2012) and 
consequently an additional structuring fee was paid, whereafter the facility was drawn on, and accordingly the unamortised structuring 
fee is reflected as part of borrowings (refer note 8).

sundry debtors at the reporting date included a loan advanced to a prospective investment to the amount of R0,8m, which carries 
interest at prime plus 1%, as well as an interest-free loan of R3,2m advanced to an existing investment. the remaining sundry debtors 
balance of R46,8m relates mainly to dividends receivable.

GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

5. cash and cash eQuivalents

bank balances  11 553  5 781 

money market fund  65 925  200 219 

 77 478  206 000 – –

the money market fund earned interest at money market rates during the period under review. money market funds are invested in 
highly liquid instruments with a weighted average maturity of less than 90 days.

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012

GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

6. shaRe capital

Authorised

1 500 000 000 (2011: 1 500 000 000) ordinary shares  
with a par value of 1 cent each  15 000  15 000  15 000  15 000 

250 000 000 (2011: 250 000 000) cumulative, non-redeemable, 
non-participating preference shares with a par value  
of 1 cent each  2 500  2 500  2 500 2 500

issued

978 088 517 (2011: 978 088 517) ordinary shares  
with a par value of 1 cent each  9 781  9 781  9 781  9 781

7. defeRRed income taX

deferred income tax liabilities

to be settled after more than 12 months  2 636  5 899 – –

 tax unrealised stc

 loss  profits  credits  total 

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

movement in the deferred tax balance:

GROuP

balance at 1 march 2010 424  (5 025)  2 934  (1 667)

charged to income statement

Reversal of deferred tax on previous fair value gains on equity 
securities transferred to investment in associated companies  2 832  2 832 

current year movement  (424)  (3 706)  (2 934)  (7 064)

balance at 28 february 2011 –  (5 899) –  (5 899)

charged to income statement

Reversal of deferred tax on previous fair value gains on equity 
securities transferred to investment in associated companies  
or on disposal of equity securities  2 782  2 782 

current year movement  481  481 

balance at 29 february 2012  –  (2 636)  –  (2 636)

cOmPAnY

balance at 28 february 2010 424  (5 025)  2 934  (1 667)

charged to income statement  (424)  5 025  (2 934)  1 667 

balance at 28 february 2011 – – – –

unutilised stc credits for the group amounted to R201,2m (2011: R111,8m) at the reporting date.

deferred income tax on temporary differences relating to equity securities that are classified as at fair value through profit or loss, 
which forms part of the group’s long-term investment strategy, is calculated using the effective capital gains tax rate of 14%. deferred 
income tax was calculated on all other temporary differences using an effective tax rate of 28%.
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GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

8. boRRoWinGs

secured loan

firstRand bank ltd (acting through its Rand merchant 
bank division) *  130 703  –  

non-current

capital outstanding  130 000

current

accrued interest  1 895

unamortised structuring fee (also refer note 4)  (1 192)

unsecured loan

Zeder financial services ltd **  64 801  25 677 

 130 703  –  64 801  25 677 

*  Borrowings are secured by investments in associated companies with a market value of R2 731 727 000, carry interest at the 
three-month JIBAR rate plus 220 bps and is repayable or convertible to preference share funding by 30 September 2012.

 The remainder of the company’s investments in associated companies and equity securities are subject to a negative pledge.

 The total borrowing facility available amounts to R495m (2011: R250m).

** Zeder Financial Services Ltd is a subsidiary of the company. The loan is interest-free and repayable on demand.

GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

9. tRade and otheR payables

management fee payable (refer note 13)  29 896  26 956 

unsettled share trades and other payables  2 466  3 264  33  33 

 32 362  30 220  33  33 

10. investment income

interest income  4 198  2 682  –  1 881 

trade and other receivables  421  

cash and cash equivalents  3 777  2 682  1 881 

Dividend income  59 524  20 112  –  30 037 

equity securities held at fair value through profit or loss  53 798  13 753  7 313 

associated companies

ordinary share investments  18 862 

preference share investments  5 726  6 359  3 862 

investment income  63 722  22 794  –  31 918 

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

11. faiR value Gains and losses

net fair value gains on equity securities  51 237 32 032

Realised fair value gains and losses 9 804  4 466 

unrealised fair value gains and losses  41 433  27 566 

net fair value gain on intergroup disposal (refer note 1)  251 147 

 51 237  32 032  –  251 147 

12. otheR opeRatinG income

Rebate received on funds invested with psg money market fund  108  49  49 

sundry income  469  733  301 

 577  782  –  350 

13. eXpenses

13.1 management fee expense

management base fee expense  47 953  53 178  26 222 

a management fee is payable to psg group ltd or its nominee 
(psg group), the group’s ultimate holding company, in terms of  
a management agreement. in accordance with the management 
agreement, psg group provides all investment, administrative, 
advisory, financial and corporate services to the Zeder group of 
companies.

management fees payable consist of a base fee and a performance 
fee element. the base fee is calculated at 2% p.a. (exclusive of 
vat) on the net asset value of the group (excluding cash) at the 
end of every month and 0,15% p.a. (exclusive of vat) on the daily 
average cash balances. the base fee is accrued at the end of every 
month. the performance fee is calculated on the last day of the 
financial year at 10% p.a. on the outperformance of the group’s 
equity portfolio above the equally weighted ftse-Jse beverage 
total Return index (tRi041) and the ftse-Jse food producers total 
Return index (tRi043) over any financial year. no performance fee 
was payable during the current or prior year.

13.2 Other expenses

bank charges and acquisition cost of investments held as “at fair 
value through profit or loss”  3 188  233  13 

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

14. finance costs

interest paid – psg corporate services (pty) ltd  330  1 324  9 

interest paid – borrowings  4 332  

interest paid – other  1 120 283 

amortisation of structuring fee  1 403 739  189 

7 185  2 346 –  198 

psg corporate services (pty) ltd is a fellow subsidiary of the group. 
interest was calculated on outstanding balances at prime plus 1%.

15. taXation

current taxation

current year  3 636  18 021 

deferred taxation

current year  (3 263)  874  (5 025)

secondary tax on companies

deferred taxation  2 934  2 934 

 373  21 829  –  (2 091)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate: % % % %

south african standard tax rate  28,0  28,0  28,0 

adjusted for:

exempt income  (5,0)  (2,0)  (3,3)

non-deductible charges  4,5  4,7  1,9 

income from associated companies  (23,2)  (20,0)

capital gains tax rate differential  (4,2)  (3,9)  (28,6)

secondary tax on companies  1,0  1,2 

effective tax rate  0,1  7,8  –  (0,8)

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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16. Related-paRty tRansactions and balances

the following related parties were identified with which the company and/or group transacted during the year, and/or balances were 
outstanding at year-end:

Party Relationship

psg group ltd ultimate holding company

Zeder financial services ltd wholly owned subsidiary

Zeder investments corporate services (pty) ltd wholly owned subsidiary of Zeder financial services ltd

psg corporate services (pty) ltd subsidiary of ultimate holding company

psg online securities (pty) ltd subsidiary of ultimate holding company

psg money market fund subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Related-party transactions during the year included dividends received from associated companies (refer notes 2 and 10), rebates 
received on funds invested with psg money market (refer note 12), the management fee expense (refer note 13) and interest paid 
(refer note 14). furthermore, in the prior year the intergroup disposal (refer notes 1 and 11) was effected.

included in the group’s interest income (refer note 10) is R60 000 (2011: R91 000) received from psg online securities (pty) ltd and 
R2 658 000 (2011: R1 870 000) received from psg money market fund. included in the company’s interest income (refer note 10) 
during the prior year is R54 000 received from psg online securities (pty) ltd and R1 720 000 received from psg money market fund.

included in the group’s other expenses is professional fees of R12 000 (2011: R116 000) paid to psg corporate services (pty) ltd for 
services not covered by the management fee (refer note 13).

administration fees of R9 000 (2011: R28 000) were incurred with psg online securities (pty) ltd during the year. these fees related 
to trades that took place via the group’s bda accounts.

previously psg corporate services (pty) ltd facilitated the process of the group obtaining an interest in an investee company.  
in exchange for waiver of the facilitation fee payable, psg corporate services (pty) ltd is entitled to receive a portion of the dividends 
received each year from mentioned interest. this amounted to R204 000 (2011: R204 000) during the year under review.

details of directors’ emoluments and share dealings are included in the directors’ report.

Related-party balances outstanding at the reporting date included the preference share investment (refer note 2), cash invested with 
psg money market fund (refer note 5) and the management fee payable (refer note 9).

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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17. capital commitments and continGencies

in terms of an investment mandate the group has a capital commitment to invest a further R49,2m (2011: R28,9m) in equity securities.

at the current and prior reporting date, the company and its subsidiaries had no contingent liabilities.

18. boRRoWinG poWeRs

in terms of the company’s memorandum of incorporation, borrowing powers are unlimited.

GROuP cOmPAnY

2012 2011 2012 2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

19. notes to the statements of  
cash floWs

19.1 cash utilised by operations

profit before taxation  334 985  280 949  256 982 

interest income  (4 198)  (2 682)  (1 881)

dividend income  (59 524)  (20 112)  (30 037)

fair value gains and losses  (51 112)  (113 374)  (251 147)

impairment loss  1 444 

share of profits of associated companies  (285 756)  (201 200)

loss on dilution of interest in associated company 7 856

finance cost  7 185  2 346  198 

structuring fee paid  (1 112)  (2 223)  (2 223)

 (51 676)  (54 852)  –  (28 108)

changes in working capital  (52 241)  9 022  –  9 088 

increase in trade and other receivables  (54 383)  (76)  (1 292)

increase in trade and other payables  2 142  9 098  10 380 

 (103 917)  (45 830)  –  (19 020)

19.2 taxation (paid)/refunded

current taxation charged to income statement  (3 636)  (18 021)

movement in current income tax receivable  4  187  196 

other  424  424 

 (3 632)  (17 410)  –  620 

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012



44 Zeder AnnuAl report 2012

GROuP

2012 2011

R’000 R’000

20. eaRninGs peR shaRe

the calculation of earnings per share is based on the following:

earnings attributable to equity holders of the company  334 612  259 120 

non-headline items of associated companies, gross and net of taxation  (43 303)  (10 199)

loss on dilution of interest in associated company  7 856 

loss/(gain) on disposal of investment in associated company 711  (65 558)

gross 125  (81 342)

tax effect 586  15 784 

impairment of investment in an associated company, gross and net of taxation  1 444 

headline earnings  299 876  184 807 

the calculation of the weighted number of shares is as follows:

number of shares at beginning and end of year (thousands)  978 089  978 089

earnings per share (cents)

attributable – basic and diluted  34,2  26,5 

headline – basic and diluted  30,7  18,9 

21. financial Risk manaGement

21.1 Financial risk factors

the group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate 
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. the group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of 
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the group’s financial performance. the group is not directly 
exposed to currency risk, nor does it make use of derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the board of directors. 

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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21. financial Risk manaGement (continued)

21.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

financial instruments are grouped into the following classes in order to facilitate effective financial risk management and disclosure in 
terms of ifRs 7 – financial instruments – disclosures:

Fair value

through loans

profit and

or loss receivables total

Financial assets at 29 February 2012 R’000 R’000 R’000

GROuP

equity securities  217 538  217 538 

investment in preference shares of associated companies  66 101  66 101 

trade and other receivables  50 831  50 831 

cash and cash equivalents  77 478  77 478 

 217 538  194 410  411 948 

Financial assets at 28 February 2011

equity securities  206 682  206 682 

investment in preference shares of associated company  61 659  61 659 

trade and other receivables  1 602  1 602 

cash and cash equivalents  206 000  206 000 

 206 682  269 261  475 943 

cOmPAnY

the company had no financial assets at the current or prior reporting date.

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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21. financial Risk manaGement (continued)

21.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

At

amortised

cost total

Financial liabilities at 29 February 2012 R’000 R’000

GROuP

borrowings  703  703 

trade and other payables  32 362  32 362 

 33 065  33 065 

cOmPAnY

borrowings  64 801  64 801 

trade and other payables  33  33 

 64 834  64 834 

Financial liabilities at 28 February 2011

GROuP

trade and other payables 30 220 30 220

cOmPAnY

borrowings  25 677  25 677 

trade and other payables  33  33 

 25 710  25 710 

21.1.1 market risk

market risk is the risk of adverse financial impact due to changes in fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments from 
fluctuations in interest rates and equity prices.

the sensitivity analysis presented below is based on reasonable possible changes in market variables for equity prices and interest rates 
for the group.

price risk
the group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held and classified on the statement of financial position as 
at fair value through profit or loss. the group manages price risk by investing in a portfolio of investments and monitoring equity 
securities’ prices on a regular basis. the group is not directly exposed to commodity price risk.

at 29 february 2012, if the closing market prices of the equity securities that the group holds had been 20% (2011: 20%) higher/lower, 
with all other variables held constant, the profit after taxation for the year would have been R37 417 000 (2011: R35 549 000)  
higher/lower.

cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
the group’s interest rate risk arises from investment in an associated company’s preference shares carrying a prime-linked dividend rate 
(refer note 2), cash balances held with financial institutions (refer note 5) and borrowings (refer note 8).

at 29 february 2012, if the prime interest rate and three-month JibaR rate had been 100 basis points (2011: 200 basis points)  
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant for the year, the group’s profit after taxation for the year would have been 
R448 000 (2011: R4 200 000) higher/lower.

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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21. financial Risk manaGement (continued)

21.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

21.1.2 credit risk

financial assets which potentially subject the group to credit risk, consist of the investment in an associated company’s preference 
shares (refer note 2), trade and other receivables (refer note 4) and cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5).

the following tables provide information regarding the aggregated credit risk exposure for the financial assets:

A3 credit

rating carrying

(moody’s) not rated value

GROuP – 29 February 2012 R’000 R’000 R’000

investment in preference shares of associated company  66 101  66 101 

trade and other receivables  50 831  50 831 

unquoted equity securities  174 157  174 157 

cash and cash equivalents – bank balances  11 553  11 553 

cash and cash equivalents – money market fund  65 925  65 925 

 11 553  357 014  368 567 

GROuP – 28 February 2011

investment in preference shares of associated company  61 659  61 659 

trade and other receivables  1 602  1 602 

unquoted equity securities  109 798  109 798 

cash and cash equivalents – bank balances  5 781  5 781 

cash and cash equivalents – money market fund  200 219  200 219 

 5 781  373 278  379 059 

credit risk relating to the preference shares held in an associated company is mitigated through the associated company’s holding of 
quoted equity securities with a market value of R167,9m (2011: R134,3m) at the reporting date. the group exercises significant 
influence over the associated company through a 49% interest in the associated company’s issued ordinary share capital.

trade and other receivables relates mainly to dividends receivable at the reporting date, which were received subsequent to the 
reporting date.

the unquoted equity securities relate to advances which are linked to equity instruments. the advances are impaired to the value of the 
underlying instruments should the market value of the instruments fall below the current carrying value of the advances.

the unrated cash and cash equivalents relate to the group’s investment in psg money market fund of which the underlying instruments 
are rated in terms of the collective investment schemes control act. the mandate of the fund is to invest in cash deposits and highly 
liquid, fixed-interest securities with a weighted average maturity of less than 90 days. a spread of investments in top-quality financial 
instruments and institutions moderates the risk through diversification.

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012



48 Zeder AnnuAl report 2012

21. financial Risk manaGement (continued)

21.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

21.1.3 liquidity risk

prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through  
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. the group’s cash resources and  
a R365m undrawn borrowing facility limits the group’s liquidity risk. 

the tables below analyses the group company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at 
the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 
balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

less than One to
 one year five years total

R’000 R’000 R’000

GROuP

29 February 2012
borrowings  11 705  154 916  166 621 
trade and other payables  32 362  32 362 

 44 067  154 916  198 983 

28 February 2011
trade and other payables  30 220  30 220 

no fixed
less than repayment
 one year terms total

R’000 R’000 R’000

cOmPAnY

29 February 2012
borrowings  64 801  64 801 
trade and other payables  33  33 

 33  64 801  64 834 

28 February 2011
borrowings  25 677  25 677 

trade and other payables  33  33 

 33  25 677  25 710 

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012

21. financial Risk manaGement (continued)

21.2 Fair value estimation

financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are disclosed by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

•	 Quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	identical	assets	or	liabilities	(level	1)
•	 Inputs	 other	 than	 quoted	 prices	 included	within	 level	 1	 that	 are	 observable	 for	 the	 asset	 or	 liability,	 either	 directly	 (that	 is,	 

as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)
•	 Inputs	for	the	asset	or	liability	that	are	not	based	on	observable	market	data	(that	is,	unobservable	inputs)	(level	3)

the following financial assets are measured at fair value:

GROuP

2012 2011

R’000 R’000

level 1 – equity securities at quoted market prices  43 381  96 884 

level 2 – unquoted equity securities  174 157  109 798 

 217 538  206 682 

no financial liabilities were carried at fair value.

21.3 capital risk management

the group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide 
returns for shareholders.

the group’s dividend policy is to declare and pay dividends according to its free cash flow model, i.e. dividends and interest received 
less management fees, interest and related taxation paid.

the group’s capital comprises total equity and borrowings, as shown in the group statement of financial position. when funding is 
required, the group will either raise additional capital or utilise debt. there is no restriction on the level of gearing. however, the group 
will continuously assess the extent of gearing employed, in the context of the level of liquidity within the group’s portfolio.
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22. shaReholdeR analysis

shareholders shares held

number % number %

Range of shareholding

 1 –  20 000  2 455  68,1  17 334 782  1,8 

 20 001 –  50 000  538  14,9  18 885 719  1,9 

 50 001 –  100 000  262  7,3  19 853 770  2,0 

 100 001 –  500 000  204  5,7  45 575 289  4,7 

 500 001 –  1 000 000  48  1,3  33 735 781  3,4 

over 1 000 000  98  2,7  842 703 176  86,2 

 3 605  100,0  978 088 517  100,0 

Public and non-public shareholding

non-public

directors  5  0,1  620 000  0,1 

psg financial services ltd  1  0,0  415 176 633  42,4 

public  3 599  99,9  562 291 884  57,5 

 3 605  100,0  978 088 517  100,0 

psg financial services ltd is the only individual shareholder holding 5% or more of the issued shares at 29 february 2012.

23. seGmental RepoRtinG

the group is organised into two reportable segments, namely: food and agri, and beverages. these segments represent the major 
associate and equity investments of the group. both segments operate mainly in the Republic of south africa.

Recurring headline earnings is calculated on a see-through basis. Zeder’s consolidated recurring headline earnings is the sum of its 
effective interest in that of each of its underlying investments, regardless of its percentage shareholding. the result is that equity 
investments which Zeder does not equity account in terms of accounting standards, are included in the calculation of recurring 
headline earnings.

non-recurring headline earnings include equity securities’ see-through recurring headline earnings and the related net fair value  
gains/losses and investment income (as recognised in the income statement). associated companies’ one-off gains/losses  
(e.g. competition commission penalties and restructuring costs) are excluded from recurring headline earnings and included in non-
recurring headline earnings.

segmental income comprises dividends received and fair value gains and losses relating to equity securities, as well as income from 
associated companies and gains/losses on disposal of interests in associated companies, as per the income statement.

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 29 February 2012

23. seGmental RepoRtinG (continued)

non-

Recurring recurring

headline headline Headline net asset

earnings earnings earnings value

For the year ended 29 February 2012 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

food and agri  265 066  29 846  294 912  2 134 101 

beverages  58 302  58 302  714 176 

 323 368  29 846  353 214  2 848 277 

net interest and other income and expenses  (2 422)  (3 176)  (5 598)  1 276 

management fees and taxation  (47 983)  243  (47 740)  (32 527)

total  272 963  26 913  299 876  2 817 026 

non-headline items  34 736

Attributable earnings  334 612

Recurring headline earnings per share (cents)  27,9

Food and  unallocated 

segmental income analysis agri Beverages  income total

for the year ended 29 February 2012 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

investments income

interest income  421  3 777  4 198 

dividend income  59 524  59 524 

share of profits of associated companies  227 189  58 567  285 756 

loss on disposal of investment in associated company  (125)  (125)

net fair value gains  51 237  51 237 

segmental income  338 246  58 567  3 777  400 590 
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23. seGmental RepoRtinG (continued)

non-

Recurring recurring

headline headline Headline net asset

earnings earnings earnings value

For the year ended 28 February 2011 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

food and agri  256 497  (73 596)  182 901  1 671 372 

beverages  60 278  (34)  60 244  675 654 

 316 775  (73 630)  243 145  2 347 026 

net interest and other income and expenses  1 112  (227)  885  207 602 

management fees and taxation  (53 178)  (6 045)  (59 223)  (32 846)

total  264 709  (79 902)  184 807  2 521 782 

non-headline items  74 313 

Attributable earnings  259 120

 

Recurring headline earnings per share (cents)  27,1 

Food and  unallocated 

segmental income analysis agri Beverages  income total

For the year ended 28 February 2011 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

investments income

interest income  2 682  2 682 

dividend income  20 112  20 112 

share of profits of associated companies  138 021  63 179  201 200 

gain on disposal of investment in associated company  81 342  81 342 

loss on impairment of associated company  (1 444)  (1 444)

net fair value gains  32 032  32 032 

segmental income  188 721  144 521  2 682  335 924 

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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24. events subseQuent to RepoRtinG date – business combinations

Agricol Holdings ltd (“Agricol”)
at the reporting date, the group held 25,1% in the issued share capital of agricol. agricol is a seed company, whose activities include 
plant breeding, production, international trade, processing and distribution of seed.

on 29 march 2012 an agreement became effective whereby the group increased its interest in agricol to 100%. the purchase 
consideration of such additional investment amounted to R150,4m, and was funded through existing cash resources and the 
unutilised borrowing facility (refer note 21.1.3).

at the date of approving these annual financial statements, the allocation of the cost of acquiring this business to identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities, is still to be determined.

chayton Atlas investments (“chayton”)
chayton is an expanding commercial farming operation. on 29 march 2012 the group entered into agreements in terms of which it 
will obtain an initial interest of approximately 81% of the issued share capital of chayton (“the initial investment”). the group will 
subscribe for the balance of the subscription shares in tranches, as and when suitable acquisition opportunities have been identified 
by chayton (“the subscription balance”). subsequent to the subscription by the group for the subscription balance, it will effectively 
hold an interest of 95,5% of the issued share capital of chayton.

the consideration paid by the group in terms of the initial investment amounts to us$9,7m (“the acquisition consideration”). the 
acquisition consideration was funded through existing cash resources and the unutilised borrowing facility (refer note 21.1.3). 
the  group will subscribe for the subscription balance, amounting to us$37m in tranches as and when suitable acquisition 
opportunities have been identified by chayton.

at the date of approving these annual financial statements, the allocation of the cost of acquiring this business to identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities, is still to be determined.

notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
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2012 2011

nature of business % %

inVestment in suBsiDiARies

Zeder financial services ltd investment holding company  100,0 100,0

Zeder investments corporate services (pty) ltd management and investment services company  100,0 100,0

thembeka agri holdings (pty) ltd * investment holding company 100,0

inVestment in AssOciAteD cOmPAnies

unlisted investments

kaap agri ltd ** agricultural  33,4  43,9 

agri voedsel beleggings ltd investment holding company with effective 
interest of 31% in pioneer food group ltd  44,7  43,9 

capevin holdings ltd investment holding company  
with effective interest of 15% in  
distell group ltd  39,8  39,5 

capespan group ltd ** transport of fresh produce  40,9  22,7 

suidwes investments ltd agricultural  23,7  21,8 

thembeka ovb holdings (pty) ltd holding company of 20% in overberg agri ltd  49,0  49,0 

mgk business investments ltd * agricultural  26,7 

nwk ltd *** agricultural  19,9 

agricol holdings ltd agricultural  25,1  25,1 

* Disposed of during the year
** Economic interest held
*** Significant influence obtained during the year through additional interest acquired and board representation.

summARiseD FinAnciAl inFORmAtiOn in ResPect OF  
PRinciPAl AssOciAteD cOmPAnies

2012
R’000

2011
R’000

assets  5 292 064  4 647 208 

liabilities  901 310  757 322 

Revenues  4 610 088  4 236 678 

profit for the year  621 050  422 620 

Principal associated companies comprise Kaap Agri Ltd, Agri Voedsel Beleggings Ltd and Capevin Holdings Ltd. The financial information 
presented are based on the principal associated companies’ most recent published results.

anneXuRe – investments
at 29 February 2012
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notice is hereby given of the annual general meeting of shareholders of Zeder investments ltd (“Zeder” or “the company”) to be held at 
webersburg, webersburg wines, annandale Road, stellenbosch, on friday, 22 June 2012, at 09:45 (“the agm”).

PuRPOse

the purpose of the meeting is to transact the business set out in the agenda below. for the avoidance of doubt, the memorandum and articles 
of association of the company are referred to as the memorandum of incorporation in accordance with the terminology used in the new 
companies act 2008 (act 71 of 2008), as amended (“the companies act”), which became effective on 1 may 2011.

AGenDA

1. presentation of the audited annual financial statements of the company, including the reports of the directors and the audit committee 
for the year ended 29 february 2012. the annual report of which this notice forms part, contains the complete audited annual financial 
statements and the aforementioned reports.

2. to consider and, if deemed fit, approve, with or without modification, the following ordinary resolutions:

note:

for any of the ordinary resolutions numbers 1 to 9 to be adopted, more than 50% of the voting rights exercised on each such ordinary 
resolution must be exercised in favour thereof. for ordinary resolution number 10 to be adopted, at least 75% of the voting rights 
exercised on such ordinary resolution must be exercised in favour thereof. 

2.1 Retirement and re-election of directors

2.1.1 Ordinary resolution number 1

“Resolved that mr gd eksteen, who retires by rotation in terms of the memorandum of incorporation of the company and, being eligible 
and offering himself for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected as director.”

summary curriculum vitae of mr GD eksteen

mr eksteen farms in the malmesbury area. he is currently the non-executive chairman of kaap agri ltd and agri voedsel beleggings ltd 
and also serves on the board of swartland investments ltd.

2.1.2 Ordinary resolution number 2

“Resolved that mr lp Retief, who retires by rotation in terms of the memorandum of incorporation of the company and, being eligible 
and offering himself for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected as director.”

summary curriculum vitae of mr lP Retief 

mr Retief obtained the bcom hons degree from the university of stellenbosch. he also qualified as chartered accountant (sa). he is 
non-executive chairman of paarl media group (pty) ltd and non-executive director of media24 ltd, Zeder investments ltd, naspers and 
pioneer food group ltd. mr Retief has been involved in the printing and publishing business since 1978. he is a past chairman of the 
provincial press association and current president of the printing industry federation of south africa.

2.1.3 Ordinary resolution number 3

“Resolved that mr pJ mouton, who retires as director in terms of the memorandum of incorporation of the company, and being eligible 
and offering himself for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected as director.”

notice of annual GeneRal meetinG
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summary curriculum vitae of mr PJ mouton 

mr mouton obtained a bcom (mathematics) degree from the university of stellenbosch. he is the chief executive officer of the  
psg group and serves as a non-executive director on the boards of various psg group companies, including curro holdings ltd and 
paladin capital ltd. he serves as non-executive director on the boards of various other companies, including capitec bank  
and thembeka capital ltd, a black-owned and controlled black empowerment investment holding company. he has been active in the 
investment and financial services industry since 1999. 

the reason for ordinary resolution numbers 1 to 2 (inclusive) is that the memorandum of incorporation of the company and, to the extent 
applicable, the companies act, require that a component of the non-executive directors rotate at the agm and, being eligible, may offer 
themselves for re-election as directors. the reason for ordinary resolution number 3 is that mr piet mouton is a new director that was 
appointed to the board with effect from 28 march 2012 and in accordance with the memorandum of incorporation of the company, and 
to the extent applicable, the companies act, is required to retire at this agm and being eligible, may offer himself for re-election 
as director.

2.2 Re-appointment of the members of the audit and risk committee of the company

note:

for avoidance of doubt, all references to the audit and risk committee of the company is a reference to the audit committee as 
contemplated in the companies act.

2.2.1 Ordinary resolution number 4

“Resolved that mr ms du pré le Roux, being eligible, be and is hereby re-appointed as a member of the audit and risk committee of the 
company, as recommended by the board of directors of the company, until the next annual general meeting of the company.”

summary curriculum vitae of mr ms du Pré le Roux

mr le Roux obtained his bcom and llb degrees from the university of stellenbosch. he is non-executive chairman of capitec bank 
holdings ltd and capitec bank ltd and non-executive director of Zeder investments ltd. mr le Roux has 30 years’ working experience 
in commerce and banking. he was managing director of distillers corporation (sa) ltd from 1979 to 1993, and from 1995 to 1998 
managing director of boland bank ltd, nbs boland ltd and boe bank ltd. mr le Roux was one of the founding members of the capitec 
group and resigned from his position as chief executive officer effective 31 march 2004.

2.2.2 Ordinary resolution number 5

“Resolved that mr gd eksteen, being eligible, be and is hereby re-appointed as a member of the audit and risk committee of the 
company, as recommended by the board of directors of the company, until the next annual general meeting of the company.”

a summary curriculum vitae of mr gd eksteen is set out in paragraph 2.1.1 above.

2.2.3 Ordinary resolution number 6

“Resolved that mr lp Retief, being eligible, be and is hereby re-appointed as a member of the audit and risk committee of the company, 
as recommended by the board of directors of the company, until the next annual general meeting of the company.”

a summary curriculum vitae of mr lp Retief is set out in paragraph 2.1.2 above.

the reason for ordinary resolution numbers 4 to 6 (inclusive) is that the company, being a public listed company, must appoint an audit 
committee and the companies act requires that the members of such audit committee be appointed, or re-appointed, as the case may 
be, at each annual general meeting of a company.
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2.3 Re-appointment of auditor

Ordinary resolution number 7

“Resolved that pricewaterhousecoopers inc be and is hereby re-appointed as auditor of the company for the ensuing year on the 
recommendation of the audit and risk committee of the company.”

the reason for ordinary resolution number 7 is that the company, being a public listed company, must have its financial results audited 
and such auditor must be appointed or re-appointed each year at the agm of the company as required by the companies act.

2.4 Auditor’s remuneration

Ordinary resolution number 8

“Resolved that the auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 29 february 2012 as determined by the audit and risk committee of the 
company be and is hereby confirmed.”

the reason for ordinary resolution number 8 is that the memorandum of incorporation of the company requires that the remuneration 
of the auditor be considered at the agm.

2.5 unissued shares placed under control of the directors

Ordinary resolution number 9

“Resolved that the unissued shares in the company, limited to 5% of the number of shares in issue at 29 february 2012, be and are 
hereby placed under the control of the directors until the next annual general meeting and that they be and are hereby authorised to 
issue any such shares as the directors may deem fit, subject to the companies act of 2008 (act 71 of 2008), as amended, the 
memorandum of incorporation of the company, and the provisions of the listings Requirements of the Jse ltd, save that the 
aforementioned 5% limitation shall not apply to any shares issued in terms of a rights offer.”

the reason for ordinary resolution number 9 is that the board requires authority from shareholders in terms of its memorandum of 
incorporation to issue shares in the company. this general authority, once granted, allows the board from time to time, when it is 
appropriate to do so, to issue ordinary shares as may be required, inter alia, in terms of capital raising exercises, to maintain a healthy 
capital adequacy ratio and to issue such shares to the share incentive trust that may be required from time to time when participants 
exercise their options to subscribe for shares in the company. this general authority is subject to the restriction that it is limited to 5% 
of the number of shares in issue at 29 february 2012 on the terms more fully set out in ordinary resolution number 9 and subject to the 
further restrictions set out in ordinary resolution number 10 below.

2.6 General authority to issue shares for cash

Ordinary resolution number 10

“Resolved that the directors of the company be and are hereby authorised by way of a general authority, to allot and issue any of its 
unissued shares for cash placed under their control as they in their discretion may deem fit, without restriction, subject to the provisions 
of the listings Requirements of the Jse ltd (“the Jse”), and subject to the proviso that the aggregate number of ordinary shares able to 
be allotted and issued in terms of this resolution, shall be limited to 5% of the issued share capital at 29 february 2012, provided that:

– the approval shall be valid until the date of the next annual general meeting of the company, provided it shall not extend beyond 
fifteen months from the date of this resolution;

– a paid press announcement giving full details, including the impact on net asset value and earnings per share, will be published 
after any issue representing, on a cumulative basis within any one financial year, 5% or more of the number of shares in issue 
prior to such issue;

– the general issues of shares for cash in the aggregate in any one financial year may not exceed 5% of the applicant’s issued share 
capital (number of securities) of that class. for purposes of determining whether the aforementioned 5% has been or will be 
reached, the securities of a particular class will be aggregated with the securities that are compulsorily convertible into securities 
of that class and, in the case of the issue of compulsorily convertible securities, aggregated with the securities of that class into 
which they are compulsorily convertible. the number of securities of a class which may be issued shall be based on the number 
of securities of that class in issue at the date of such application less any securities of the class issued during the current financial 
year, provided that any securities of that class to be issued pursuant to a rights issue (announced and irrevocable and 
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underwritten) or acquisition (concluded up to the date of application) may be included as though they were securities in issue at 
the date of application;

– in determining the price at which an issue of shares will be made in terms of this authority the maximum discount permitted will 
be 10% of the weighted average traded price of such shares, as determined over the 30 trading days prior to the date that the 
price of the issue is agreed between the issuer and the party subscribing for the securities. the Jse should be consulted for a ruling 
if the securities have not traded in such 30 business day period;

– any such issue will only be made to public shareholders as defined in 4.25 to 4.27 of the listings Requirements of the Jse and 
not to related parties; and

– any such issue will only be securities of a class already in issue or, if this is not the case, will be limited to such securities or rights 
that are convertible into a class already in issue.”

for listed entities wishing to issue shares for cash, it is necessary for the board not only to obtain the prior authority of the shareholders 
as may be required in terms of their memorandum of incorporation, contemplated in ordinary resolution number 9 above, but it is also 
necessary to obtain the prior authority of shareholders in accordance with the listings Requirements of the Jse. the reason for ordinary 
resolution number 10 is accordingly to obtain a general authority from shareholders to issue shares for cash in compliance with the 
listings Requirements of the Jse.

at least 75% of the shareholders present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the agm must cast their vote in favour of this 
resolution.

3. to consider and, if deemed fit, pass, with or without modification, the following special resolutions:

note:

for the special resolutions to be adopted, at least 75% of the voting rights exercised on each special resolution must be exercised in 
favour thereof.

3.1 intercompany financial assistance

3.1.1 special resolution number 1: intercompany financial assistance

“Resolved in terms of section 45(3)(a)(ii) of the companies act of 2008 (act 71 of 2008), as amended (“the companies act”), as a 
general approval, that the board of the company be and is hereby authorised to approve that the company provides any direct or indirect 
financial assistance (“financial assistance” will herein have the meaning attributed to it in section 45(1) of the companies act) that the 
board of the company may deem fit to any company or corporation that is related or inter-related (“related” or “inter-related” will 
herein have the meaning attributed to it in section 2 of the companies act) to the company, on the terms and conditions and for 
amounts that the board of the company may determine, provided that the aforementioned approval shall be valid until the date of the 
next annual general meeting of the company.” 

the reason for and effect of special resolution number 1 is to grant the directors of the company the authority until the next agm to 
provide direct or indirect financial assistance to any company or corporation which is related or inter-related to the company. this means 
that the company is, inter alia, authorised to grant loans to its subsidiaries and to guarantee the debt of its subsidiaries.

3.1.2 special resolution number 2: Financial assistance for acquisition of shares in a related or inter-related company

“Resolved that in terms of section 44(3)(a)(ii) of the companies act, as a general approval, that the board of the company be and is 
hereby authorised to approve that the company provides any direct or indirect financial assistance (“financial assistance” will herein 
have the meaning attributed to it in section 44(1) and 44 (2) of the companies act), that the board of the company may deem fit to any 
company or corporation that is related or inter-related to the company (“related” or “inter-related” will herein have the meaning 
attributed to it in section 2 of the companies act), on the terms and conditions and for amounts that the board of the company may 
determine for the purpose of, or in connection with the subscription of any option, or any shares or other securities, issued or to be 
issued by a related or inter-related company, or for the purchase of any shares or securities of a related or inter-related company, 
provided that the aforementioned approval shall be valid until the date of the next annual general meeting of the company.”

the reason for and effect of special resolution number 2 is to grant the directors the authority until the next agm to provide financial 
assistance to any company or corporation which is related or inter-related to the company for the purpose of or in connection with the 
subscription or purchase of options, shares or other securities in any such related or inter-related company or corporation. this means 
that the company is authorised, inter alia, to grant loans to its subsidiaries and to guarantee and furnish security for the debt of its 
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subsidiaries where any such financial assistance is directly or indirectly related to a party subscribing for options, shares or securities in 
its subsidiaries. a typical example of where the company may rely on this authority is where a subsidiary raised funds by way of issuing 
preference shares and the third-party funder requires the company to furnish security, by way of a guarantee or otherwise, for the 
obligations of its subsidiary to the third-party funder arising from the issue of the preference shares. the company has no immediate 
plans to use this authority and is simply obtaining same in the interests of prudence and good corporate governance should the 
unforeseen need arise to use the authority.

3.2 share repurchases by the company and its subsidiaries

3.2.1 special resolution number 3: share buy-back by Zeder

“Resolved as a special resolution that the company be and is hereby authorised, as a general approval, to repurchase any of the shares 
issued by the company, upon such terms and conditions and in such amounts as the directors may from time to time determine, but 
subject to the provisions of sections 46 and 48 of the companies act of 2008 (act 71 of 2008), as amended (“the companies act”), 
the memorandum of incorporation of the company, the listings Requirements of the Jse ltd (“the Jse”) and the requirements of any 
other stock exchange on which the shares of the company may be quoted or listed, including, inter alia, that:

– the general repurchase of the shares may only be implemented on the open market of the Jse and done without any prior 
understanding or arrangement between the company and the counterparty;

– this general authority shall only be valid until the next annual general meeting of the company, provided that it shall not extend 
beyond fifteen months from the date of this resolution;

– an announcement must be published as soon as the company has acquired shares constituting, on a cumulative basis, 3% of the 
number of shares in issue prior to the acquisition, pursuant to which the aforesaid 3% threshold is reached, containing full details 
thereof, as well as for each 3% in aggregate of the initial number of shares acquired thereafter;

– the general authority to repurchase is limited to a maximum of 20% in the aggregate in any one financial year of the company’s 
issued share capital at the time the authority is granted;

– a resolution has been passed by the board of directors approving the purchase, that the company has satisfied the solvency and 
liquidity test as defined in the companies act and that since the solvency and liquidity test was applied there have been no 
material changes to the financial position of the group;

– the general repurchase is authorised by the company’s memorandum of incorporation;
– repurchases must not be made at a price more than 10% above the weighted average of the market value of the shares for five 

business days immediately preceding the date that the transaction is effected. the Jse should be consulted for a ruling if the 
applicant’s securities have not traded in such five business day period;

– the company may at any point in time only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase(s) on the company’s behalf;
– the company may not effect a repurchase during any prohibited period as defined in terms of the listings Requirements of  

the Jse unless there is a repurchase programme in place as contemplated in terms of 5.72(g) of the listings Requirements of the 
Jse; and

– the company must ensure that its sponsor provides the Jse with the required working capital letters before it commences the 
repurchase of any shares.”

the reason for and effect of special resolution number 3 is to grant the directors a general authority in terms of its memorandum of 
incorporation and the listings Requirements of the Jse for the acquisition by the company of shares issued by it on the basis reflected 
in the special resolution. 

in terms of the listings Requirements of the Jse any general repurchase by the company must, inter alia, be limited to a maximum of 
20% of the company’s issued share capital in any one financial year of that class at the time the authority is granted.

3.2.2 special resolution number 4: share buy-back by subsidiaries of Zeder

“Resolved as a special resolution that the company, insofar as it may be necessary to do so, hereby approves, as a general approval, and 
authorises the acquisition by any subsidiary of the company (“the subsidiary” or “the acquiree”) of shares issued by such subsidiary 
and/or shares issued by the company, upon such terms and conditions and in such amounts as the directors of any such subsidiary may 
from time to time determine, but subject to the provisions of sections 46 and 48 of the companies act of 2008 (act 71 of 2008), as 
amended (“the companies act”), the memorandum of incorporation of the company, the listings Requirements of the Jse ltd 
(“the Jse”) and the requirements of any other stock exchange on which the shares of the subsidiary may be quoted or listed, including, 
inter alia, that:
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– the general repurchase of shares may only be implemented on the open market of the Jse and done without any prior 
understanding or arrangement between the acquiree and the other counterparty;

– this general authority shall only be valid until the next annual general meeting of the company, provided that it shall not extend 
beyond fifteen months from the date of this resolution;

– an announcement must be published as soon as the acquiree has acquired shares constituting, on a cumulative basis, 3% of the 
number of shares of the acquiree company in issue prior to the acquisition, pursuant to which the aforesaid 3% threshold is 
reached, containing full details thereof, as well as for each 3% in aggregate of the initial number of shares acquired thereafter;

– this general authority to repurchase is limited to a maximum of 20% in the aggregate in any one financial year of the acquiree’s 
issued share capital at the time the authority is granted, subject to a maximum of 10% in the aggregate in the event that it is 
the company’s share capital that is repurchased by a subsidiary;

– a resolution has been passed by the board of directors approving the purchase, that the company has satisfied the solvency and 
liquidity test as defined in the companies act and that since the solvency and liquidity test was applied there have been no 
material changes to the financial position of the group;

– the general purchase is authorised by the company’s memorandum of incorporation;
– repurchases must not be made at a price more than 10% above the weighted average of the market value of the shares for  

the five business days immediately preceding the date that the transaction is effected. the Jse should be consulted for a ruling  
if the securities have not traded in such five business day period;

– the company and/or subsidiary may at any point in time only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase(s) on the subsidiary 
company’s behalf;

– the subsidiary company may not effect a repurchase during any prohibited period as defined in terms of the listings Requirements 
of the Jse unless there is a repurchase programme in place as contemplated in terms of 5.72(g) of the listings Requirements of 
the Jse; and

– the company must ensure that its sponsor provides the Jse with the required working capital letters before it commences the 
repurchase of any shares.”

the reason for and effect of special resolution number 4 is to grant the board of directors of any subsidiary of the company a general 
authority in terms of the listings Requirements of the Jse to acquire shares issued by such subsidiary and/or to acquire shares issued by 
the company on the basis reflected in the special resolution. 

in terms of the listings Requirements of the Jse, any general purchase by a subsidiary of shares must, inter alia, be limited to a maximum 
of 20% of the issued share capital of the acquiree company in any one financial year of that class at the time the authority is granted, 
subject to a maximum of 10% in the event that it is the company’s share capital that is repurchased by a subsidiary.

3.3 special resolution number 5: Adoption of a new memorandum of incorporation

“Resolved in terms of section 60(1)(c)(ii) of the companies act of 2008 (act 71 of 2008), as amended (“the companies act”) that the 
company hereby approves and adopts in terms of section 60(5)(a) of the companies act, a new memorandum of incorporation (“moi”), 
a copy of which has been tabled at this annual general meeting and initialled by the chairman of this annual general meeting for 
identification purposes, in substitution for the existing memorandum of incorporation. the date on which the moi becomes effective will 
be the date that this special resolution approving the moi is adopted, irrespective of the date of filing thereof with the companies and 
intellectual properties commission.”

the reason for special resolution number 5 is to obtain the approval of the shareholders of the company to replace the existing 
memorandum of incorporation (previously known as the memorandum of incorporation and articles of association) with a new 
memorandum of incorporation which is aligned with the requirements of the companies act. in terms of schedule 5 of the companies 
act, every pre-existing company has until 1 may 2013 to amend its memorandum of incorporation in harmony with the companies act. 
a copy of the memorandum of incorporation proposed for adoption in terms of special resolution number 5 is available for inspection 
from 22 may 2012 up to 21 June 2012 at the registered office of the company at ou kollege building, 35 kerk street, stellenbosch, 7600.

the effect of this special resolution will be that the company will adopt a new memorandum of incorporation in compliance with the 
companies act.

4. Other business

to transact such other business as may be transacted at an agm or raised by shareholders with or without advance notice to the 
company.
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information relating to the special resolutions

1. the directors of the company or its subsidiaries will only utilise the general authority to purchase shares of the company and/or the 
subsidiary as set out in special resolutions numbers 3 and 4 to the extent that the directors, after considering the maximum shares to 
be purchased, are of the opinion that the position of the company and its subsidiaries (“Zeder group”) would not be compromised as 
to the following:

– the Zeder group’s ability in the ordinary course of business to pay its debts for a period of 12 months after the date of this agm 
and for a period of 12 months after the purchase;

– the consolidated assets of the Zeder group will at the time of the agm and at the time of making such determination be in excess 
of the consolidated liabilities of the Zeder group. the assets and liabilities should be recognised and measured in accordance with 
the accounting policies used in the latest audited annual financial statements of the Zeder group;

– the ordinary capital and reserves of the Zeder group after the purchase will remain adequate for the purpose of the business of 
the Zeder group for a period of 12 months after the agm and after the date of the share purchase; and

– the working capital available to the Zeder group after the purchase will be sufficient for the Zeder group’s requirements for  
a period of 12 months after the date of the notice of the annual general meeting

and the directors have passed a resolution authorising the repurchase, resolving that the company or the subsidiary, as the case 
may be, has satisfied the solvency and liquidity test as defined in the companies act and resolving that since the solvency and 
liquidity test had been applied, there have been no material changes to the financial position of the Zeder group.

general information in respect of directors, major shareholders, directors’ interest in securities and material changes and the 
share capital of the company is contained in the annual report of the company for the financial year ending 29 february 2012 
(“the annual report”) which has been delivered to the ordinary shareholder with this notice.

2. the company is not involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings, nor are any proceedings pending or threatened of which the 
company is aware that may have or have had in the previous 12 months, a material effect on the company’s financial position.

3. the directors, whose names appear on page 1 of the annual report of which this notice forms part, collectively and individually accept 
full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given and certify that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no facts 
that have been omitted which would make any statement false or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts 
have been made and that the notice contains all information required by the listings Requirements of the Jse.

4. special resolution numbers 1, 3 and 4 are renewals of resolutions taken at the previous annual general meeting on 15 June 2011.

information relating to the remuneration of directors

in terms of the management agreement between Zeder and psg corporate services (pty) ltd (“psg”), all directors’ fees are paid by psg. in 
the interest of transparency, shareholders are advised that fees payable to directors in the financial year ahead will be as set out below: 

per annum for serving as a director: R75 600

per annum for serving on the audit and risk committee: R27 000

note: executive directors of the company are not personally remunerated for their services as directors of the company and/or its subsidiaries.

VOtinG

1. the date on which shareholders must be recorded as such in the share register maintained by the transfer secretaries of the company 
(“the share Register”) for purposes of being entitled to receive this notice is friday, 18 may 2012.

2. the date on which shareholders must be recorded in the share Register for purposes of being entitled to attend and vote at this meeting 
is friday, 15 June 2012, with the last day to trade being friday, 8 June 2012.

3. meeting participants will be required to provide proof of identification to the reasonable satisfaction of the chairman of the agm and 
must accordingly bring a copy of their identity document, passport or driver’s licence to the agm. if in doubt as to whether any 
document will be regarded as satisfactory proof of identification, meeting participants should contact the transfer secretaries 
for guidance.
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4. shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the agm may appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and vote thereat in their stead. 
a proxy need not be a member of the company. a form of proxy, in which are set out the relevant instructions for its completion, is 
enclosed for the use of a certificated shareholder or own-name registered dematerialised shareholder who wishes to be represented at 
the annual general meeting. completion of a form of proxy will not preclude such shareholder from attending and voting (in preference 
to that shareholder’s proxy) at the agm.

5. the instrument appointing a proxy and the authority (if any) under which it is signed must reach the transfer secretaries of the company 
at the address given below by not later than 12:00 on wednesday, 20 June 2012.

6. dematerialised shareholders, other than own-name registered dematerialised shareholders, who wish to attend the agm in person will 
need to request their central securities depository participant (“csdp”) or broker to provide them with the necessary authority in terms 
of the custody agreement entered into between such shareholders and the csdp or broker.

7. dematerialised shareholders, other than own-name registered dematerialised shareholders, who are unable to attend the annual 
general meeting and who wish to be represented thereat, must provide their csdp or broker with their voting instructions in terms of 
the custody agreement entered into between themselves and the csdp or broker in the manner and time stipulated therein.

8. shareholders present in person, by proxy or by authorised representative shall, on a show of hands, have one vote each and, on a poll, 
will have one vote in respect of each share held.

by order of the board

PsG corporate services (Pty) ltd
company secretary

15 may 2012
stellenbosch

Registered office
Zeder investments ltd
ou kollege
35 kerk street
stellenbosch, 7600
(po box 7403, stellenbosch, 7599)

transfer secretaries
computershare investor services (pty) ltd
ground floor
70 marshall street
Johannesburg, 2001
(po box 61051, marshalltown, 2107)

sponsor
psg capital
ou kollege
35 kerk street
stellenbosch, 7600
(po box 7403, stellenbosch, 7599)
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(incorporated in the Republic of south africa)
(Registration number 2006/019240/06)

Jse share code: Zed
isin code: Zae000088431

(“Zeder” or “the company”)

FORm OF PROXY – FOR use BY ceRtiFicAteD AnD OWn-nAme DemAteRiAliseD sHAReHOlDeRs OnlY

for use at the annual general meeting of ordinary shareholders of the company to be held at 09:45 at webersburg, on friday, 22 June 2012.

i/we (full name in print) ____________________________________________________________________________________

of (address)  _____________________________________________________________________________________________

being the registered holder of ________________________________________________________ ordinary shares hereby appoint:

1. ____________________________________________________________________________________ or failing him/her,

2. ____________________________________________________________________________________ or failing him/her,

3. the chairman of the meeting,
as my proxy to vote for me/us at the annual general meeting for purposes of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without 
modification, the special resolutions and ordinary resolutions to be proposed thereat and at each adjournment thereof and to vote for  
and/or against the resolutions and/or abstain from voting in respect of the shares registered in my/our name(s) in accordance with the 
following instructions (see notes):

number of shares

in favour of against abstain

1. to accept the presentation of the audited annual financial statements

2.1.1 ordinary resolution number 1: to re-elect mr gd eksteen as director

2.1.2 ordinary resolution number 2: to re-elect mr lp Retief as director

2.1.3 ordinary resolution number 3: to re-elect mr pJ mouton as director

2.2.1 ordinary resolution number 4: to re-appoint mr ms du pré le Roux as a member of the audit 
and risk committee

2.2.2 ordinary resolution number 5: to re-appoint mr gd eksteen as a member of the audit and risk 
committee

2.2.3 ordinary resolution number 6: to re-appoint mr lp Retief as a member of the audit and risk 
committee

2.3 ordinary resolution number 7: to re-appoint pricewaterhousecoopers inc as the auditor

2.4 ordinary resolution number 8: to confirm the auditor’s remuneration

2.5 ordinary resolution number 9: unissued shares placed under control of the directors

2.6 ordinary resolution number 10: general authority to issue shares for cash

3.1.1 special resolution number 1: intercompany financial assistance

3.1.2 special resolution number 2: financial assistance for the acquisition of shares in a related or 
inter-related company

3.2.1 special resolution number 3: share buy-back by Zeder

3.2.2 special resolution number 4: share buy-back by subsidiaries of Zeder

3.3 special resolution number 5: adoption of new memorandum of incorporation

please indicate your voting instruction by way of inserting the number of shares or by a cross in the space provided.

signed at _____________________________ on this ________________ day of __________________________________ 2012.

signature(s)  ____________________________________________________________________________________________

assisted by (where applicable) (state capacity and full name) 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________

each Zeder shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more proxy(ies) (who need not be a shareholder(s) of the company) to attend, speak and 
vote in his/her stead at the annual general meeting.
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nOtes

1. a Zeder shareholder may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the shareholder’s choice in the space(s) 
provided, with or without deleting “the chairman of the annual general meeting”. the person whose name appears first on the form of 
proxy and who is present at the meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow.

2. a Zeder shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of shares to be voted on behalf 
of that shareholder in the appropriate box provided. failure to comply with the above will be deemed to authorise the chairman of the 
annual general meeting, if he/she is the authorised proxy, to vote in favour of the resolutions at the meeting, or any other proxy to vote 
or to abstain from voting at the meeting as he/she deems fit, in respect of all the shares concerned. a shareholder or his/her proxy is 
not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by the shareholder or his/her proxy, but the total of the votes cast and in respect whereof 
abstentions are recorded may not exceed the total of the votes exercisable by the shareholder or his/her proxy.

3. when there are joint registered holders of any shares, any one of such persons may vote at the meeting in respect of such shares as if 
he/she was solely entitled thereto, but, if more than one of such joint holders be present or represented at any meeting, that one of the 
said persons whose name stands first in the register in respect of such shares or his/her proxy, as the case may be, shall alone be entitled 
to vote in respect thereof. several executors or administrators of a deceased member, in whose name any shares stand, shall be deemed 
joint holders thereof.

4. forms of proxy must be completed and returned to be received by the transfer secretaries of the company, computershare investor 
services (pty) ltd (po box 61051, marshalltown, 2107), by not later than 12:00 on wednesday, 20 June 2012.

5. any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory(ies).

6. documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be attached 
to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the company’s transfer secretaries or waived by the chairman of the annual 
general meeting.

7. the completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the annual general meeting 
and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof, should such shareholder wish 
to do so.
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